
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 15, 2010 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 

(City Council Rules of Procedure – Rule 16) 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with 
recognition of the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or 
comment. City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring 
it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel 
that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it 
to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the 
Mayor and Council 
. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 

extended with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent 
Agenda items or any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act 
during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are 
related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public 
Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up 
to speak either on a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of 
the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
February 15, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Jeff Totten – Troy Police Department Chaplain 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Proclamation in Recognition of National Children of Alcoholics Week – 
February 15-22, 2010 Presented to Ann Comiskey by Mayor Louise Schilling .... 1 

(b) Proclamation in Recognition of League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – 
February 14, 2010 and February as League of Women Voters Making 
Democracy Work Month Presented to Pam Brady by Mayor Louise Schilling ..... 1 

(c) Presentation of the Michigan Recreation and Park Association Fellowship 
Award to Carol Anderson ..................................................................................... 1 

(d) Presentation of Troy Public Library 2009 Hennen’s American Public Library 
Ratings by Library Director Cathleen Russ ........................................................... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

G-1 No Postponed Items 2 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled ............................................................. 2 
(b) City Council Appointment: Building Code Board of Appeals ................................ 3 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 3 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 3 
(b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals ................................. 3 

H-3 Bid Waiver:  Police Department Computer Room Environmental Controls 4 

H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Hidden Parc Site Condominium, South 
of Long Lake Road, West Side of John R Road, Section 14 – R-1C 4 

H-5 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2006-2011 5 

H-6 Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy (LSRRF) and 
Authorization to Return 80% of the Money in the LSRRF to Taxing Jurisdictions 5 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 6 

(a) National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 15-22, 2010 ............................ 7 
(b) League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – February 14, 2010 and 

February as League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month ............ 7 



 

 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 7 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – 
Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills ...................................................... 7 

I-5 Request of Marriott International, Inc. to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC as Co-
License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. as Co-License in 2009 B-
Hotel and SDM Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official 
Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 West Big Beaver and 
change Official Permit (Food) hours – MLCC Request #519011 7 

I-6 City of Troy v. MNAD Property, LLC 8 

I-7 City of Troy v. Picano Land Limited Partnership 8 

I-8 City of Troy v. Rochester Square Associates 9 

I-9 Acceptance of the 2009 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 9 

I-10 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 20, 2010 9 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 9 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 9 

a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – March 1, 2010 ............................................ 9 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 9 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 10 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 10 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 10 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 10 

M. REPORTS 10 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 



 

 

(a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 27, 2009 .................... 10 
(b) Historic District Commission/Final – September 15, 2009 .................................. 10 
(c) Historic District Commission/Final – October 20, 2009 ...................................... 10 
(d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 3, 2009 ............................. 10 
(e) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 12, 2009 ........................................... 10 
(f) Historic District Commission/Final – November 17, 2009 ................................... 10 
(g) Traffic Committee/Final – November 18, 2009 ................................................... 10 
(h) Historic Commission/Final – November 30, 2009............................................... 10 
(i) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 1, 2009 ............................. 10 
(j) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 8, 2009 ....................... 10 
(k) Library Advisory Board/Final – December 10, 2009 ........................................... 10 
(l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 14, 2009 .................................... 10 
(m) Historic District Commission/Final – December 15, 2009 .............................. 10 
(n) Youth Council/Final – December 16, 2009 ......................................................... 10 
(o) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2010 ................................. 10 
(p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 6, 2010 .................................. 10 
(q) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 7, 2010 ....................... 10 
(r) Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – January 11, 2010 ....................................... 10 
(s) Planning Commission/Final – January 12, 2010 ................................................ 10 
(t) Youth Council/Draft – January 27, 2010 ............................................................. 10 
(u) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 3, 2010 ................................ 10 
(v) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 4, 2010 ..................... 10 
(w) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 8, 2010 ........................................ 10 

M-2 Department Reports: 10 

(a) Police Department – 2009 Year End Calls for Police Service Report ................ 10 
(b) Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of January 2010 ......... 10 
(c) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for February 2010 ............ 10 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 10 

(a) Letter of Thanks to City Manager John Szerlag from Michael Bolger 
Recognizing the Excellent Service the Building Department has provided to 
Synergy Group ................................................................................................... 10 

(b) Letter of Thanks to Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson from 
Walsh College Presidency Stephanie Bergeron Regarding the Use of Traffic 
Cones ................................................................................................................. 10 

(c) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Keith and Gail Dressell 
Regarding the Assistance Received from Officer Villerot and PSA 
Vaillancourt ......................................................................................................... 10 

(d) Letter from Steve Madden Commending the Professionalism and Kindness of 
Officer Shuler ..................................................................................................... 11 

(e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke 
Regarding the Set-up and Use of Camera System ............................................ 11 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 11 

(a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #10006 – Support of 
the Final Report of the Legislative Commission on Statutory Mandates, 
December 2009 (Report available on City of Troy Current City Council 
Agenda Web Page) ............................................................................................ 11 



 

 

M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting – November 19, 2009 11 

N. STUDY ITEMS 11 

N-1  No Study Items Submitted 11 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 11 

O-1 No Closed Session Requested 11 

P. ADJOURNMENT 11 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 11 

Monday, March 1, 2010 ........................................................................................... 11 
1. Michigan Next Energy Exemptions ..................................................................... 11 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 11 

Monday, March 1, 2010 Regular City Council ....................................................... 11 
Monday, March 15, 2010 Regular City Council ..................................................... 11 
Monday, April 5, 2010 Regular City Council .......................................................... 11 
Monday, April 19, 2010 Regular City Council ........................................................ 11 
Monday, April 26, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ...................................... 11 
Monday, May 3, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ........................................ 11 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Jeff Totten – Troy Police Department Chaplain 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

(b) Absent Council Members: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, February 15, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes:    
No:    

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
(a) Proclamation in Recognition of National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 15-22, 

2010 Presented to Ann Comiskey by Mayor Louise Schilling  
(b) Proclamation in Recognition of League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – February 

14, 2010 and February as League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month 
Presented to Pam Brady by Mayor Louise Schilling  

(c) Presentation of the Michigan Recreation and Park Association Fellowship Award to 
Carol Anderson  

(d) Presentation of Troy Public Library 2009 Hennen’s American Public Library Ratings by 
Library Director Cathleen Russ 

  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                                                                    

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

(b) City Council Appointment: Building Code Board of Appeals  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular)  5-Year Term for 3 Residents: Background, training or  
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil  
engineer of architectural engineering experience.*   
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Michael Carolan *Resident Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*   
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 

*Resident - Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 Bid Waiver:  Police Department Computer Room Environmental Controls 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to replace the cooling 
system in the server room of the Police Department for an estimated cost of $35,062.00, in 
accordance with Attachment II - Detailed Pricing, utilizing in-house personnel, approved 
contracts, standard purchasing procedures and allowing the purchase of the cooling system 
through the sole Southeast Michigan distributor, Computer Support Technology of Troy, MI. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Hidden Parc Site Condominium, South 

of Long Lake Road, West Side of John R Road, Section 14 – R-1C 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Plan as submitted 
under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as 
Hidden Parc Site Condominium, located south of Long Lake Road, west of John R Road, 
including 30 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 13.3 acres in size, subject to the 
following condition(s): 
 

1. The applicant shall provide a turnaround at the northern terminus of Luisa Drive.  
The turnaround shall be designed to accommodate emergency vehicle turning 
movements, as determined by the Engineering Department prior to Final Site 
Condominium Approval. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
H-5 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2006-2011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES a one-year extension of the 2006-2010 
collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME for the period July 1, 
2010 through June 30, 2011 as presented, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 
to execute the final agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-6 Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy (LSRRF) and 

Authorization to Return 80% of the Money in the LSRRF to Taxing Jurisdictions 
 
a) Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy (LSRRF) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On February 2, 2010 the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority adopted a 
resolution approving the attached Amended Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund (LSRRF) 
Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has the authority to approve an amendment to the Local 
Site Remediation Revolving Fund (LSRRF) Policy;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Amended 
Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund (LSRRF) Policy a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Authorization to Return 80% of the Money in the LSRRF to Taxing Jurisdictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

 
WHEREAS, On February 2, 2010 the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority adopted a 
resolution recommending that the Troy City Council return 80% of the funds from the Local Site 
Remediation Revolving Fund (LSRRF) proportionally to the taxing jurisdictions that contributed 
to the LSRRF; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has the authority, if City Council determines it is in the best 
interest of the City, to divest the captured tax dollars held in the LSRRF; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES divesting 80% of 
the funds currently held in the LSRRF and returning it to the taxing jurisdictions as follows: 
  
   

City 
 

County 
Community 

College 
 

Total 
80% Disbursement  $1,369,789.18 $685,695.91 $233,983.71 $2,289,468.80 
 
Yes: 
No: 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of February 1, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
(a) National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 15-22, 2010  
(b) League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – February 14, 2010 and February as 

League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month  
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide Laser 
Printing and Distribution of the City of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew for 
three (3) additional years to low total bidder, DataMail Services of Madison Heights, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $9,614.00 per year, plus the actual cost of first class postage, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 16, 2009, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting to commence May 1, 2010 and expire April 
30, 2011. 
 
I-5 Request of Marriott International, Inc. to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC as Co-

License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. as Co-License in 2009 B-Hotel 
and SDM Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official Permit 
(Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 West Big Beaver and change 
Official Permit (Food) hours – MLCC Request #519011 

 
(a) Name Change in Business Ownership and Change Start Time of Food Service on 

Sunday 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request of 
Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation)  to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company) as Co-License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. 
(A Delaware Corporation) as Co-License in 2009 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business with 
Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and change Official Permit (Food) hours from 
weekdays, 6:00 AM to 7:00 AM and Sundays, 7:00 AM to 12:00 PM to weekdays, 6:00 AM to 
7:00 AM and Sundays, 6:00 AM to 12:00 PM {MLCC #519011}. “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request of 
Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation)  to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company) as Co-License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. 
(A Delaware Corporation) as Co-License in 2009 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business with 
Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and change Official Permit (Food) hours from 
weekdays, 6:00 AM to 7:00 AM and Sundays, 7:00 AM to 12:00 PM to weekdays, 6:00 AM to 
7:00 AM and Sundays, 6:00 AM to 12:00 PM {MLCC #519011} and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-6 City of Troy v. MNAD Property, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v MNAD Property, LLC, et al., (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 09-097984-CC), and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated 
therein; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 City of Troy v. Picano Land Limited Partnership 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v Picano Limited Land Partnership (Oakland County 
Circuit Court Case No. 09-097975-CC), and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts 
stated therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

I-8 City of Troy v. Rochester Square Associates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v Rochester Square Associates, et al., (Oakland County 
Circuit Court Case No. 09-097971-CC), and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts 
stated therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-9 Acceptance of the 2009 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Fire Department to receive 
a FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant and expend $41,600.00 for the purchase of 
equipment in accordance with the award; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Fire Department 
budget to receive the grant funding of $166,400.00. 
 
I-10 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 20, 2010 
 
Establishment of an Additional NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING Zone on the West 
Side of Anvil from Forge to approximately 100 Feet North of the Intersection 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. ________ 
be issued for the establishment of an additional NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone 
on the west side of Anvil from Forge to approximately 100 feet north of the intersection during 
the hours of 7:45 AM to 8:45 AM and 2:45 PM to 3:45 PM, school days only. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – March 1, 2010      
            
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 27, 2009 
(b) Historic District Commission/Final – September 15, 2009 
(c) Historic District Commission/Final – October 20, 2009  
(d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 3, 2009  
(e) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 12, 2009 
(f) Historic District Commission/Final – November 17, 2009 
(g) Traffic Committee/Final – November 18, 2009  
(h) Historic Commission/Final – November 30, 2009  
(i) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 1, 2009  
(j) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 8, 2009 
(k) Library Advisory Board/Final – December 10, 2009  
(l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 14, 2009 
(m) Historic District Commission/Final – December 15, 2009  
(n) Youth Council/Final – December 16, 2009  
(o) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2010 
(p) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 6, 2010  
(q) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 7, 2010  
(r) Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – January 11, 2010 
(s) Planning Commission/Final – January 12, 2010  
(t) Youth Council/Draft – January 27, 2010  
(u) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 3, 2010  
(v) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 4, 2010  
(w) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 8, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Police Department – 2009 Year End Calls for Police Service Report  
(b) Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of January 2010  
(c) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for February 2010  
    
M-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
(a) Letter of Thanks to City Manager John Szerlag from Michael Bolger Recognizing the 

Excellent Service the Building Department has provided to Synergy Group  
(b) Letter of Thanks to Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson from Walsh College 

Presidency Stephanie Bergeron Regarding the Use of Traffic Cones  
(c) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Keith and Gail Dressell Regarding the 

Assistance Received from Officer Villerot and PSA Vaillancourt   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 15, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

(d) Letter from Steve Madden Commending the Professionalism and Kindness of Officer 
Shuler  

(e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke Regarding 
the Set-up and Use of Camera System 

 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
(a) Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #10006 – Support of the Final 

Report of the Legislative Commission on Statutory Mandates, December 2009 (Report 
available on City of Troy Current City Council Agenda Web Page)   

 
M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting – November 19, 2009 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  No Study Items Submitted 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 No Closed Session Requested 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, March 1, 2010 
1.  Michigan Next Energy Exemptions  

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, March 1, 2010 ............................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, March 15, 2010 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 5, 2010 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 19, 2010 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 26, 2010 ........................................... Special Study Session – Budget 
Monday, May 3, 2010.............................................. Special Study Session – Budget 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

NATIONAL CHILDREN OF ALCOHOLICS WEEK 
FEBRUARY 15 – 22, 2010 

 

WHEREAS, It is estimated that one in four children in the United States under age 18 is hurt by family 
alcohol abuse or alcoholism, and that countless others are affected by parental drug use; and  

WHEREAS, There is strong scientific evidence that alcoholism runs in families, with children of alcoholics 
being two- to four-times more likely to develop alcoholism than children of non-alcoholics; and 

WHEREAS, Parental alcohol abuse is a significant factor in a large proportion of child abuse and neglect 
cases; and 

WHEREAS, Young children of alcoholics exhibit symptoms of depression and anxiety to a greater extent 
than children of non-alcoholics; and  

WHEREAS, Young children of alcoholics often have difficulty in school and are more likely to be truant, 
drop out of school, repeat grades, or be referred to a school counselor or psychologist; and 

WHEREAS, Children of alcoholics, with interest and support from family, friends, health professionals, 
teachers, clergy and others, can avoid the negative effects of familial alcoholism; and 

WHEREAS, The Troy Community Coalition and caring members of our community are committed to helping 
children of alcoholics; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby proclaim  
February 15-22, 2010 as Children of Alcoholics Week in the City of Troy, Michigan; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council calls upon all citizens, community agencies, 
organizations and businesses in Troy to encourage all citizens of Troy to help break the silence often 
surrounding familial alcoholism and reach out to support the children and their families. 

 
Presented this 15th day of February 2010. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01a



 

 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS 90th ANNIVERSARY 
FEBRUARY 14, 2010 

 
WHEREAS, League of Women Voters is a nonpartisan political organization, that has fought since 1920 to 
improve our system of government and impact public policies through citizen education and advocacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, League members are constantly striving to serve their communities to make strong, safe, fair 
and vibrant places to live; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League believes in representative government and in the individual liberties established in 
the Constitution of the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League has always worked to promote the values and processes of representative 
government; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League collaborates with other organizations to achieve mutual goals, increase civic 
participation, create lasting change in the community and to make democracy work; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League, for 90 years, has held the public trust by respectfully bringing elected leaders and 
the public together through non-partisan, civil means and through thoughtfully advancing solutions; and 
 
WHEREAS, Communities across the country have benefited tremendously from the countless volunteer 
hours donated by League members over its 90 year history of enhancing our democracy;  
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, That the City of Troy celebrates this important milestone by 
proclaiming February as “League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month” in honor of the 
League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council urges all residents to pay great tribute and 
respect to the League of Women Voters Troy Area for all they do to make our community healthy, vibrant 
and strong. 
 
Presented this 15th day of February 2010. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01b



 

 
 
                        
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
     
SUBJECT:   Hennen’s American Public Library Ratings 2009 
 
 
I am pleased to announce that Hennen’s American Public Library Ratings has declared the Troy 
Public Library the 10th best library in the United States, for its population category, for 2009.  
 
The Troy Public Library is also the 2nd highest ranked library in Michigan for its population size (tied 
with West Bloomfield Public Library for 2nd place, after Canton Public Library), and tied for 4th place 
overall in the state of Michigan.  
The HAPLR ratings are based on many factors, primarily circulation, staffing, materials, reference 
service, and funding levels.  Data is based on statistics collected in the 2006/2007 reporting year.  

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01d



The Troy Public Library
2009 HAPLR Rankings

Cathy Russ – Library Director – x3544



HAPLR

Library Annual Report 2008-09

HAPLR is…
•Hennen’s American Public Library Ratings Index

•www.haplr-index.com/ratings.html
•Data is obtained from the Institute for Museum & 
Library Services

•Since 1999, HAPLR analyzes data and rates public 
libraries based on a number of factors:

•Usage statistics
•Budget compared to population
•Hours of operation

http://www.haplr-index.com/ratings.html�


State Ranking

Library Annual Report 2008-09

The Troy Public Library received the 2nd

highest ranking for libraries in its population 
category (50,000 – 99,000). 

(tied with W. Bloomfield Public Library)

•Canton Public Library 99%
•Troy Public Library 98%
•West Bloomfield Public Library 98%



State Ranking, Part 2

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Troy Public Library tied for 4th place in 
overall rankings of Michigan Libraries. 

•Ann Arbor District Library (100,000 pop)   100%
•Plymouth District Library (25,000 pop)       100%
•Canton Public Library (50,000 pop) 99%
•Troy Public Library (50,000 pop)                  98%
•W. Bloomfield Public Library (50,000 pop)   98%



National Rankings

Library Annual Report 2008-09

Troy Public Library was ranked 10th highest 
in the nation for its population category 

(50,000 – 99,000)



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
February 3, 2010 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Steve A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director  

Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:  Bid Waiver:  Police Department Computer Room Environmental Controls 

 
Background 
This past year the Police Department has consolidated computer hardware into one room.  This was 
done for security and power considerations.  The main computer room has a 15 kilowatt UPS 
emergency power source and it is powered by a backup diesel generator when the main power goes 
out.  It is more secure because of access control but yet accessible to contractors and persons who 
must have access to the room to service hardware and software.   
 
The new server room is the focal point for all police voice and data traffic.  It houses just under an 
estimated $1 million dollars worth of hardware including the new 800 MHz radio system, the State 
Network First radio equipment, the new 911 system, county switches and routers, and seven Police 
Department servers as well as other miscellaneous hardware.  It is a room critical to police 
department operations and to the well being and safety of all citizens. 
 
The room is currently cooled by a 5 ton, water-cooled air conditioner.  While the unit operated 
satisfactorily for quite some time, it was never meant to cool a room with this much hardware 
producing this much heat.  It has failed about five times in the last six months.  Each time Building 
Operations has fixed it, but not without expending man-hours in the response and money in parts. 
 
The existing unit would remain in place and serve as a backup to the new unit providing redundant 
systems.  It is estimated that a 10-15% reduction in water consumption would be realized thereby 
providing some immediate cost savings.                     
 
Financial Considerations 
Funds for this project are available in the Police Department capital account for Radio 
Communications, #401.301.12.325.7980.055. 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
H-03



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
February 3, 2010 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Police Department Computer Room Environmental Controls 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
Formal bidding procedures are waived as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 
 
Recommendation  
City management is requesting authorization to purchase a cooling system specifically made for 
computer rooms.  It would be purchased directly from the distributor, Computer Support Technology 
of Troy, MI at a cost of $11,708.00. (see Attachment I)  Other necessary hardware such as the ceiling 
diffuser, mounting supplies, metal duct work and insulation, and piping would cost approximately 
$12,950.00. Building Operations would provide labor for the entire project at an estimated cost of 
$10,404.00.  The total project cost is estimated at $35,062.00. (see Attachment II)   
 
 
 
Prepared by: Wendell Moore, Research-Tech Administrator 



I ATTACHMENT 

COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNOLO 
1409·G ALLEN DRIVE. TROY, MICHIGAN 48083 • 248·616-9200. FAX: 248·616-8980 

COMPANY: 
ATTN: 
FAX: 
FROM: 

City of Troy 
Steve Pallotta 

Tim Dwyer 248-616-8982 

PROPOSAL#: 
PAGES: 
DATE: 

001375152 
3 

Oct 28,2009 

PROJECT: TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

We are pleased to provide our quotation for the following Emerson Network Power system for your 
consideration on this project. 

One (1) 5 Ton Split Evaporator Liebert Mini-Mate2 Precision Cooling System, Model 
MMD60E7AOOLA. Each system will provide a total cooling capacity of 59,400 BTUH and a sensible 
cooling capacity of 52,100 Btuh at 72°F, 50% RH. Unit configured for input voltage of 460 Volts, 3 Phase, 
60 Hz. (FLA 2.8, WSA 3.5, OP~ 15.0) 

Split System Evaporator 
• 	 Includes evaporator coil, filter drier, thermal expansion valve, R-407C refrigerant unit charge, belt

driven blower, and microprocessor control with audible and visual alarms 

One (1) Liebert Model MC065ALAH7 Condensing Unit (FLA 12.9, WSA 15.4, OP~ 25.0) 
• 	 High head pressure switch 
• 	 R-407C refrigerant unit charge 
• 	 Scroll Compressor 
• 	 Hot Gas Bypass 

Factory Installed Options 
• 	 Filter Clog Indicator 
• 	 Disconnect Switch 

Ship-Loose Accessories 
• 	 (1) Set Sweat Adapters 
• 	 (1) 460 Volt Condensate Pump 
• 	 (1) Condensate Pump Bracket 
• 	 Filter Box w/20% Filter 

Services Include: 
• 	 One year Parts only warranty 
• 	 5 Year Com pressor Only: Liebert 1 st year standard parts only warranty + 2nd through 5th year 

compressor only extended warranty 
• 	 Warranty Inspection 

Total Price Including Freight FOB Factory but NOT TAX 	 USC 11,392.00 

Price Add for Remote Sensors is 	 USO 316.00 

Notes: 

10/28/2009 

http:11,392.00


1. The Microprocessor Cable to be supplied by others and field installed. The 
communication cable can be run up to 30 feet in length and should be 4-wire plenum rated 
thermostat wire. 

2. 	 The single most important requirement for maintaining environmental control in the 
conditioned room is the vapor barrier. 

Please address purchase order to: 

COMPUTER SUPPORT TECHNOLOGY 

Attn: Tim Dwyer/Pam Hanes 

1409-G ALLEN DRIVE 

TROY MI 48083-4003 


MISCELLANEOUS: 


NOTE: Pricing is firm for 30 days from date of this quotation. 


PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 days subject to credit approval. 


EXCLUDED: Receiving, lift gate or open top trucks, rigging, installation, piping or valves, external power 

and control wiring, and threaded and bolted rods or support of unit. 


DELIVERY: Approximately 3 - 4 weeks after receipt of purchase order. 


WARRANTY: This quotation is subject to Liebert's product warranty(ies) and 

Liebert Terms and Conditions of Sale. 

NOTE: Sales/Use Tax will be added at time of shipment. If claiming an exception, the exemption status 
must be stated on your purchase order. Properly completed exemption certificates must be on file at 
Computer Support Technology for non-taxable purchases. 

Tim Dwyer 
Account Representative 

10/28/2009 



ATTACHMENT II - DETAILED PRICING

POLICE DISPATCH 911 PHONE EQUIPMENT AND DATA ROOM

Price
5 Ton Liebert Mini Mate Precision Cooling System (Computer Support Technology of Troy) $11,708.00

Ceiling Diffusser Supply and Return $2,875.00

Equipment mounting supplies ( Unistrut, Threaded rod,  Washers, Nuts and Bolts, Hangers ) $1,200.00

Metal Duct Work         ( Fabricated custom to fit ) $2,800.00

Electrical supplies         ( Disconnects, Conduit, Wiring , Circuit Breakers ) $3,200.00

Duct Insulation $1,200.00

Flexible insulated duct and balancing dampers $1,200.00

Copper refrigerant lines and condensate piping $475.00

Subtotal of above $24,658.00

Labor cost estimated  120 hrs X 3 men X $28.90 per hr = $10,404.00 $10,404.00

Estimated total cost for the entire project $35,062.00



1 
 

 
 
DATE: February 9, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Hidden Parc Site Condominium, South of 

Long Lake Road, West side of John R Road, Section 14 – R-1C  
 
 
Hidden Parc Site Condominium received Preliminary Site Condominium Approval from City 
Council on June 20, 2005.  The 35-unit development was approved with one street connection to 
John R, two relatively lengthy cul-de-sacs and two Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) facilities.  
The applicant did not receive Final Site Condominium Approval and therefore Preliminary Approval 
expired. 
 
New owner and applicant CPVentures, LLC proposes a revised layout for Hidden Parc Site 
Condominium.  The applicant proposes a 30-unit site condominium on the 13.3 acre parcel.  
Access is provided by two public roads connecting to John R Road.  A stub road terminating at the 
northern property line is also proposed.  The development will utilize the Lot Averaging Option 
(Section 34.10.00) which provides for up to a 10 percent reduction in lot areas and widths.  The 
applicant proposes developing the project in two phases.   
 
The applicant intends to create three residential parcels on the north side of Welling Drive, just 
west of unit 3.  Lot split applications are approved administratively by the City Assessor, as 
regulated under Chapter 41 Subdivision Control Ordinance.  Because the proposed design does 
not extend the Luisa Drive stub street to the north into the subject property, the applicant is 
responsible for constructing a turnaround that will safely accommodate vehicles, including 
emergency vehicles.  
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the project at the December 8, 2009 Regular 
meeting (see attached report dated December 4, 2009 and resolution).  The applicant made the 
following revisions to the Site Condominium Plan based on Planning Commission comments: 
 

1. All issues raised in the report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman, Associates, Inc. (dated 
December 3, 2009) were addressed. 

2. Based on discussion with the Engineering Department, the applicant eliminated the rear yard 
drains proposed along the west property line.  By moving the catch basins closer to the rear 
of the homes, the applicant was able to preserve trees along the western boundary line. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-04



2 
 

3. A note was added to the site plan indicating that a temporary turnaround will be installed at 
the phase line. 

4. The applicant provided a turnaround at the northern terminus of Luisa Drive.  The 
turnaround shall be designed to accommodate emergency vehicle turning movements, as 
determined by the Engineering Department prior to Final Site Condominium Approval. 

 
The application meets all relevant regulations, including complying with Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  City Management recommends approval of Preliminary Site Condominium Plan for 
Hidden Parc Site Condominium. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated January 14, 2010. 
3. Minutes from the December 8, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Report prepared for Planning Commission, dated December 4, 2009. 
5. Public comment. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Hidden Parc Site Condo Sec 14\Application 2009\CC Approval Hidden Parc Site Condo 02 15 10.docx 

 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium, Section 14

12/3/2009

Legend

1: 2,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2390479 479Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



Hidden Parc Site Condominium, Section 14

12/3/2009

Legend

1: 2,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2390479 479Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  January 14, 2010 
 
 

Site Condominium Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Christopher Cousino, CP Ventures, LLP  
 
Project Name: Hidden Parc Site Condominium  
 
Plan Date: December 24, 2009 
 
Location: South of Long Lake Road, on the west side of John R Road, in Section 

14 
 
Zoning: R-1C, One Family Residential 
 
Action Requested: Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION
 
We are in receipt of a revised site condominium plan for a project titled “Hidden Parc Site 
Condominiums.” The project was granted a recommendation of approval from the Planning 
Commission on December 8, 2009.  This project is a revival of a previously approved but 
defunct site condominium project.  The development would include the demolition of 5 existing 
homes, the preservation of a sixth home, and the construction of an additional 29 new homes and 
a private drive network having access to John R. Road in two locations. 
 
Site condominium projects are regulated in Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance under the 
“unplatted one-family residential development” provisions. The proposed project utilizes lot size 
averaging to meet minimum lot size regulations in the underlying R-IC, One-Family Residential 
District. 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
January 14. 2010 

2 

 
All unplatted one-family residential development must obtain a recommendation with regard to 
preliminary plan approval from the Planning Commission, and then seek preliminary approval of 
the site condominium from the City Council.  Final plan approval requests are reviewed by City 
staff and acted upon by City Council, in accordance with 34.30.06.C. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located south of Long Lake Road, on the west side of John R Road, in section 
14.   
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 13.3 acres in size. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing a 30-unit site condominium project. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Six single-family homes presently sit on the property.  The applicant proposes to remove 5 of the 
homes and retain one home (unit 11). 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is zoned R-1C (One-Family Residential).  
 
Zoning Classification and Land Use of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C (One Family Residential); Beer Barrel Party Store 
South: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
East: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
West: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT
 

The project is designed to incorporate an existing home located on what will become unit 11.  
The layout incorporates two separate access drives to John R. Road, the proposed Rosewood 
Lane and Hazelnut Lane.  These two drives would be connected by a third private street, Honey 
Locust, which runs north to south near the property’s west boundary.  A single cul-de-sac, 
Rosewood Court, is present near the Rosewood Lane access to John R. Road, to provide access 
to the existing home and four additional new units situated within the interior of the site.   

In addition to the 30 proposed units, or building sites, the project includes two common areas.  
The first is a large detention basin at the southwest corner of the property, and the second is a 
“park” immediately adjacent the intersection of Luisa Drive and John R. Road.  This park is 
unusual in shape, and is essentially a remnant piece of property made necessary by the 
arrangement of Rosewood Court, which has been designed around the existing home that is to be 
preserved. While we support the preservation of the existing home, it is unfortunate that it 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
January 14. 2010 

3 

restricts the efficient arrangement of units in this way.  However, we believe that with proper 
maintenance and improvements, this remnant piece of property can become an asset to the 
development. 

Items to be Addressed: None.     
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 30.20.00 requires the following dimensional requirements for the R-1C District 
 

 
The building height and lot coverage are not shown, but will be enforced by the City as the 
construction of individual homes is permitted.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION
 
Proposed Circulation: 
As noted previously, the site is arranged to allow access to John R. Road at two locations, and 
includes a north to south road and a central cul-de-sac to provide access to all portions of the 
property.  This arrangement makes use of nearly the entire property for building sites and allows 

               Required:               Proposed: 

Minimum Lot Area 

10,500 sq. ft. (with sewer) and 
9,450 sq. ft. with lot size averaging 
option 

9,862 minimum, 13,125 
average  

Dwelling Unit Density 3.1 DU/acre 2.39 DU/acre 

Lot Width 
85 feet (with sewer) and 76.5 feet 
with lot size averaging option 76.5 foot minimum 

Setbacks   

Front  30 Feet 30 Feet 

Side 10 Feet 10 Feet 

Side (total) 20 Feet 20 Feet 

Rear 40 Feet  40 Feet  

Building Height 2 stories, 25 feet Not shown 

Site Boundary setback (John 
R. Road setback)  50 feet 50 feet 

Lot Coverage Maximum 30 %  Not shown 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
January 14. 2010 

4 

for the future potential connection to the north.  A temporary asphalt “T” will be located at the 
north “stub” end of Honey Locust to reserve this capability. 
 
Immediately south of the project is an existing subdivision that includes an east to west street 
known as Welling Drive.  At the extreme east end of Welling Drive is an “eyebrow” and a stub 
street extending north that is known as Luisa Drive.  The existing off-site Luisa Drive “stub” 
street will terminate at the rear of the proposed unit 3.  While Luisa Drive would ideally extend 
through this area and connect with the new project, as it was originally approved, there is no City 
requirement compelling the applicant to do so.  Therefore, we do not object to this arrangement.   
 
We observed during a site visit that the existing “eyebrow” is nearly sufficient to allow for a 
vehicle to fully turn around at the terminus of Welling Drive without pulling into a residential 
driveway, but it would be more suitable to add an opposing “eyebrow” on the west side of the 
Luisa Drive “stub” to accommodate vehicles of all sizes.  The applicant has added the opposing 
eyebrow, which is located on an adjacent parcel that is also under his control.  We support the 
new proposed arrangement. 
 
Sidewalks:  
Sidewalks already exist along John R. Road which meet the 8 foot minimum sidewalk width.  A 
full sidewalk network is also proposed throughout the project on both sides of all proposed 
streets.     
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is currently largely wooded, with mature trees spreading over the existing single-family 
residential lots.  The woods are most extensive in the southwest corner of the overall property 
and along the existing lot boundaries, separating the individual lots.  The applicant has included 
a tree preservation plan which demonstrates that the vast majority of these existing trees will be 
removed to accommodate the new development, although some effort  has been made to save 
trees in several areas where the could be avoided.  This includes a revised location for 
underground utilities, which have been moved from the rear yards to the front yards for units 
along the west boundary. It is our understanding that the applicant has sought the input of the 
City engineering department to move forward with this alternative design, which will improve 
the applicant’s ability to preserve trees along the common boundary with the homes to the west. 
 
There are several locations on lots 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 12, 16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 23, and 25 where 
trees not marked for removal would most likely be disturbed by the construction of a home.  The 
applicant has stated that these trees are not indicated for removal, because they will attempt to 
reserve as many as possible, although it is unclear which trees will be able to be preserved given 
the variability of potential home footprints within the building envelopes.  There are no 
requirements for tree preservation or mitigation for this project.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None.  
 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
January 14. 2010 

5 

LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been provided identifying how Ordinance requirements are being met in 
accordance to the City of Troy Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards.  
 
Composition: 
A variety of planting materials are proposed, and planting details have been provided.    
 
Street Trees: 
There are 48 street trees proposed, which equates to 1 tree for every 20 linear feet of frontage, 
meeting Ordinance requirements.  Further, an additional 27 trees are proposed surrounding the 
detention basin. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LIGHTINGNG 
 
Lighting information has not been provided with the preliminary site plan.  Detailed lighting 
information will be required for final site plan approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We are in support of the proposed site condominium.  The final minor outstanding informational 
elements have been addressed and the plan meets all Ordinance requirements.  We recommend 
that the preliminary site condominium plan be approved.   
 

 
#225-02-2916 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
8. SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hidden Parc Site 

Condominium, 30 units/lots proposed, West side of John R between Wattles and Long Lake, 
Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the proposed Hidden 
Parc Site Condominium.  He reported on the following site plan deficiencies. 
 
 Expand the width of unit 22 to meet minimum requirements. 
 Rename the proposed Luisa Drive. 
 Add a “T” turnaround or west “eyebrow” on the west side of the existing Luisa Drive “stub” 

street. 
 Clarify trees to be removed and replace proposed trees to an appropriate species as noted 

by the City’s Landscape Analyst. 
 Address specific site plan notations, as addressed under Submittal Requirements in the 

Planning Consultant report dated December 3, 2009. 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the significant revisions from the previously approved site plan; i.e., 
number of units, emergency vehicle access and connections to John R. 
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 560 Whims Lane, Shelby Township, was present to represent 
the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher gave a brief history of the property.  He addressed the cul de sacs, 
phasing of the project as relates to infrastructure, stormwater management, lighting and 
landscaping.   
 
It was brought to the attention of the Planning Consultant that the plans in front of the Planning 
Commission members were different than the plan being addressed by the Planning Consultant. 
 
Mr. Mosher indicated the minor revisions made to the plans distributed to the members relate to 
street names and the phase line. 
 
Messrs. Branigan and Savidant addressed recent departmental changes in the site plan review 
process.  Mr. Savidant apologized for the confusion. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Stormwater management. 
 Development design standards. 
 Pre-application meetings with applicants. 

 
Mr. Mosher said the intent of the petitioner is to move quickly on the project, to build two-story 
homes in the range of 3,000 square feet and to leave as many trees as possible for a natural 
buffer.  He indicated every effort would be made to preserve trees. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Paul Fitzgerald of 4698 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Fitzgerald said he was glad to hear 
comments this evening with respect to saving trees.  He addressed preservation of the natural 
landscape, stormwater management, access drives, the depressed housing market and 
development phases of the project. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

Neal Harris of 4762 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Harris expressed appreciation for the 
cooperation and responses he received from Mr. Savidant through email and at the department 
counter.  Mr. Harris addressed preservation of the natural landscape and the depressed housing 
market. 
 
David Evans of 4782 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Evans said he would welcome any 
improvement to the property because it has been abandoned and an eyesore for years.  Mr. Evans 
addressed the infrastructure and development phases of the project and asked the distance from 
the first street south of the party store in relation to his home. 
 
Mr. Branigan replied approximately 125 feet from property line to the drive. 
 
Chair Schultz encouraged Mr. Evans to contact the Planning Department during regular business 
hours for further information. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
There was discussion on stormwater management and development design standards. 
 
Christopher Cousino of 12955 - 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Mr. Cousino, the 
property owner, said he would consider alternatives on stormwater management.  He stated it is 
not his intent to clear cut the property.  Mr. Cousino said he would like to work cohesively with 
the Planning Commission and Engineering Department.   
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-101 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the Preliminary 
Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential Development), as requested for 
Hidden Parc Site Condominium, including 30 units, located north of Welling on the west side of 
John R, Section 14, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Clarification of items raised in the Site Condominium Report prior to consideration by City 

Council. 
 
FURTHERMORE, That the following design recommendations are provided to City 
Management: 
 
1. Require discussions with the petitioner, the Planning Department and the Engineering 

Department to explore innovative stormwater techniques and materials to preserve a greater 
number of trees, especially in the rear yard lots. 

2. Clarification of items in the Site Condominium Report, inclusive of clarifying phasing of the 
project and treatment of the turnaround of Phase 1. 

3. Potential for an eyebrow to assist in the turnaround on Welling and Luisa south of the 
property on the west side. 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



  PC 2009.12.08 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

DATE: December 4, 2009 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed 

Hidden Parc Site Condominium, 30 units/lots proposed, West side of John R 
between Wattles and Long Lake, Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District 

 
 
The applicant, CP Ventures LLP, submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan  Approval application.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
project. 
 
It should be noted that Hidden Parc Site Condominium received Preliminary Approval from 
City Council on June 20, 2005.  However, the applicant did not seek Final Approval and 
the Preliminary Approval expired.  The approved development included 35 units.  There 
was no vehicular connection with Hidden Oaks Subdivision to the south, although an 
Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) was required.  The revised application proposes a 30-
unit development, with no roadway or EVA connection to Hidden Oaks. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss the application at the December 8, 2009 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by CWA, dated December 3, 2009 
3. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Plats 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Hidden Parc Site Condo Sec 14\Application 2009\Hidden Parc Memo 12 08 
09.docx 
 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium, Section 14

12/3/2009

Legend

1: 2,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2390479 479Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



Hidden Parc Site Condominium, Section 14

12/3/2009

Legend

1: 2,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2390479 479Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  December 3, 2009 
 
 

Site Condominium Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Christopher Cousino, CP Ventures, LLP  
 
Project Name: Hidden Parc Site Condominium  
 
Plan Date: November 10, 2009 
 
Location: South of Long Lake Road, on the west side of John R Road, in Section 

14 
 
Zoning: R-1C, One Family Residential 
 
Action Requested: Site Condominium Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a preliminary site condominium plan for a project titled “Hidden Parc Site 
Condominiums.” The project is a revival of a previously approved but defunct site condominium 
project.  The development would include the demolition of 5 existing homes, the preservation of 
a sixth home, and the construction of an additional 29 new homes and a private drive network 
with access to John R. Road in two locations. 
 
Site condominium projects are regulated in Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance under the 
“unplatted one-family residential development” provisions. The proposed project utilizes lot size 
averaging to meet minimum lot size regulations in the underlying R-IC, One-Family Residential 
District. 
 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
December 3, 2009 

2 

All unplatted one-family residential development must obtain a recommendation with regard to 
preliminary plan approval from the Planning Commission, and then seek preliminary approval of 
the site condominium from the City Council.  Final plan approval requests are reviewed by City 
staff and acted upon by City Council, in accordance with 34.30.06.C. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located south of Long Lake Road, on the west side of John R Road, in section 14.   
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 13.3 acres in size. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing a 30-unit site condominium project. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Six (6) single-family homes presently sit on the property.  The applicant proposes to remove 5 of 
the homes and retain one home (unit 11). 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is zoned R-1C (One-Family Residential).  
 
Zoning Classification and Land Use of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C (One Family Residential); Beer Barrel Party Store 
South: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
East: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
West: R-1C (One Family Residential); one family residential 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

Project is designed to incorporate an existing home located on what will become unit 11.  The 
layout incorporates two separate access drives to John R. Road, the proposed Luisa Drive and 
Hazelnut Lane.  These two drives would be connected by a third private street, Honey Locust, 
which runs north to south near the property’s west boundary.  A single cul-de-sac, Rosewood 
Court, is present near the Luisa Drive access to John R. Road, to provide access to the existing 
home and four additional new units situated within the interior of the site.   

In addition to the 30 proposed units, or building sites, the project includes two common areas.  
The first is a large detention basin at the southwest corner of the property, and the second is a 
“park” immediately adjacent the intersection of Luisa Drive and John R. Road.  This park is 
unusual in shape, and is essentially a remnant piece of property made necessary by the 
arrangement of Rosewood Court, which has been designed around the existing home that is to be 
preserved. While we support the preservation of the existing home, it is unfortunate that it 
restricts the efficient arrangement of units in this way.  However, we believe that with proper 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
December 3, 2009 

3 

maintenance and improvements, this remnant piece of property can become an asset to the 
development. 

Items to be Addressed: None.     
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 30.20.00 requires the following dimensional requirements for the R-1C District 
 

 
The building height and lot coverage are not shown, but will be enforced by the City as the 
construction of individual homes is permitted.  Unit 22 does not meet the minimum lot width 
requirement, even with the lot size averaging option applied.  At the setback line, unit 22 is only 
76.41 feet in width, and is 76.44 feet in width at the front lot line.  However, the applicant could 
reduce the width of Unit 21, which exceeds 76.5 feet width, to accommodate additional required 
width for Unit 22. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Expand the width of unit 22 to meet minimum requirements.   
 

               Required:               Proposed: 

Minimum Lot Area 

10,500 sq. ft. (with sewer) and 
9,450 sq. ft. with lot size averaging 
option 

9,862 minimum, 13,158 
average 

Dwelling Unit Density 3.1 DU/acre 3.29 DU/acre 

Lot Width 
85 feet (with sewer) and 76.5 feet 
with lot size averaging option 

76.5 foot minimum, with the 
exception of unit 22, which 
does not meet minimum lot 
width standards 

Setbacks   

Front  30 Feet 30 Feet 

Side 10 Feet 10 Feet 

Side (total) 20 Feet 20 Feet 

Rear 40 Feet  40 Feet  

Building Height 2 stories, 25 feet Not shown 

Site Boundary setback (John 
R. Road setback)  50 feet 50 feet 

Lot Coverage Maximum 30 %  Not shown 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
December 3, 2009 

4 

 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Proposed Circulation: 
As noted previously, the site is arranged to allow access to John R. Road at two locations, and 
includes a north to south road and a central cul-de-sac to provide access to all portions of the 
property.  This arrangement makes use of nearly the entire property for building sites and allows 
for the future potential connection to the north.  A temporary asphalt “T” will be located at the 
north “stub” end of Honey Locust to reserve this capability. 
 
Immediately south of the project is an existing subdivision that includes an east to west street 
known as Welling Drive.  At the extreme east end of Welling Drive is an “eyebrow” and a stub 
street extending north that is also known as Luisa Drive.  It is likely that the Luisa Drive 
proposed in the new project will have to be renamed, as it will not connect with this existing 
Luisa Drive and will not have any common connection whatsoever.  This is subject to final 
approval of the City. The existing off-site Luisa Drive “stub” street will terminate at the rear of 
the proposed unit 3.  While Luisa Drive would ideally extend through this area and connect with 
the new project, as it was originally approved, there is no City requirement compelling the 
applicant to do so.  Therefore, we do not object to this arrangement.   
 
We observed during a site visit that the existing “eyebrow” is nearly sufficient to allow for a 
vehicle to fully turn around at the terminus of Welling Drive without pulling into a residential 
driveway, but it would be more suitable to add a “T” turnaround or opposing “eyebrow” on the 
west side of the Luisa Drive “stub” to accommodate vehicles of all sizes.  This should be 
possible, given that the vacant residential lot on the west side is also under control of the 
applicant, and was created by a land division. 
 
Sidewalks:  
Sidewalks already exist along John R. Road which meet the 8 foot minimum sidewalk width.  A 
full sidewalk network is also proposed throughout the project on both sides of all proposed 
streets.     
 
Items to be Addressed: 1.) Potentially rename the proposed Luisa Drive. 2.) Add a “T” 
turnaround or west “eyebrow” on the west side of the existing Luisa Drive “stub” street. 
, SETBACKS 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is currently largely wooded, with mature trees spreading over the existing single-family 
residential lots.  The woods are most extensive in the southwest corner of the overall property 
and along the existing lot boundaries, separating the individual lots.  The applicant has included a 
tree preservation plan which demonstrates that the vast majority of these existing trees will be 
removed to accommodate the new development, although some effort  has been made to save 
trees in several areas where the could be avoided.  That being said there are several locations on 
lots 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 12, 16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 23, and 25 where trees not marked for removal 
would most likely be disturbed by the construction of a home.  The applicant should clarify why 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
December 3, 2009 

5 

these trees are not indicated for removal, and revise the tree preservation plan if necessary.  There 
are no requirements for tree preservation or mitigation for this project.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Clarify trees to be removed.  
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscape plan has been provided identifying how Ordinance requirements are being met in 
accordance to the City of Troy Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards.  
 
Composition: 
A variety of planting materials are proposed, and planting details have been provided.  The 
chosen deciduous decorative tree, the Pyrus Calleryana, was not approved by the City Landscape 
Analyst, nor was the planting details, which he indicated were out of date.  The Landscape plans 
will need to be revised to address these issues.   
 
Street Trees: 
There are 48 street trees proposed, which equates to 1 tree for every 20 linear feet of frontage, 
meeting Ordinance requirements.  Further, an additional 27 trees are proposed surrounding the 
detention basin. 
 
Items to be Addressed: Replace proposed Pyrus Calleryana trees with a suitable species and 
update planting details to satisfy the City Landscape Analyst’s concerns. 
 
LIGHTINGNG 
 
Lighting information has not been provided with the preliminary site plan.  Detailing lighting 
information will be required for final site plan approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The submittal meets minimum requirements.  However, several details should be clarified or 
corrected: 
 

• The existing driveways are shown on the site plan drawing above all other layers.  While 
we understand that these are to be removed, it is confusing on the site plan.  

• It is unclear what the dark black arrows are leant to represent on the site plan. 
• The phase line between phases 1 and 2 cuts directly through units 12 and 13.  In which 

phase will these units be developed? 
• It is unclear if the entire road network will be developed in the first phase or within each 

phase separately.  If separately, how will the temporary terminus of Honey Locust be 
designed? 



Hidden Parc Site Condominium 
December 3, 2009 

6 

• The site boundary varies from sheet to sheet.  The three lots on the existing Welling Drive to 
the south, were one part of this property, and are being developed separately via a land 
division.  These should not be included on the site plan as part of the site.  Therefore, the 
landscape plan, existing conditions survey, and tree preservation plan must be revised to 
match the boundary shown on the site plan. 

 
Items to be Addressed: Address the comments provided herein.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We are largely in support of the proposed site condominium.  There are several outstanding 
elements that must be addressed prior to the plan being presented to the City Council; however 
the plan meets all Ordinance requirements except the slight lot width deviation on unit 22.  Once 
corrected, and once the additional informational items are settled, we believe the preliminary site 
condominium plan should be approved.  Therefore, we recommend that the Planning 
Commission recommend to the City Council that the preliminary site condominium be approved 
as designed, conditioned upon the applicant addressing the items noted herein prior to being 
presented at the City Council for approval. 
 

 
#225-02-2916 
 
 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



l"'-IU~/U·i I L ';)<::'YliA6 

I~m~8 
Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Richard Robinson [rrobinson@us.gestamp.comj 

Sent: Monday, December 07, 2009 1 :52 PM 

To: Kathy Czamecki 

Subject: FW: Hidden Pare Site Condominium 


12-7-09 

Planning Commission; 

With great dismay I find this notice of another plan to ruin my backyard. With the economy as it is now I see no reason to 
tear up a natural setting to possibly sell condominiums. There is already a site at Rochester & Wattles area that is moving 
very slowly and quite frankly it is going to be a while before it is completed. This Hidden Pare Site was proposed a couple 
of years ago and my wife and I canvassed the area and acquired numerous signatures that were not considered as a 
viable reason not to destroy this property for a chance that these condos might sell. It does not seem to be a very good 

. idea to tear up this parcel of land on a chance that this will be a nice addition to our neighborhood. The Planning 
Commission now has a very difficult decision from a community stand point. Even if you decide to let this project go thru 
what have you done to our neighborhood if these buildings don't sell. It is my strong recommendation to delay this project 
for at least another 2 years as Michigan puts itself back together. 

Very Concerned Citizens 

Richard & Denise Robinson 

4748 Whitesell, Troy 


1 



 
 
 
 
 

Hidden Parc Site  
Condominium Plans  

are available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  February 10, 2010 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Ratification of Contract Extension – American 

Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2006-
2011 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement between 
the City of Troy and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees for 
an extension of the collective bargaining agreement from June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2011 
with the exception of health insurance which will be subject to negotiations as of June 30, 
2010, and including that all employees will take the equivalent of a 5% wage decrease in the 
form of unpaid furlough days irrespective of the outcome of the millage election on February 
23, 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 23, 2009, the City Council approved an agreement between the City of Troy and 
AFSCME to extend the current collective bargaining agreement from June 30, 2009 to June 
30, 2010.  This, in effect, meant a wage freeze for the approximately 80 employees in that 
bargaining unit.   
 
Less than six months into the contract extension, the union agreed to open their contract for 
the purpose of investigating options for employee concessions.  A tentative agreement on a 
Letter of Understanding was reached which provides for the equivalent of a 5% pay 
reduction whether or not the millage increase is passed in the February election.  The 
contract would be extended to June 30, 2011, except that as of June 30, 2010, health 
insurance, including drug rider, will be subject to negotiations.  The membership ratified this 
Letter of Understanding on February 9, 2010.  A copy of the Letter of Understanding is 
attached for your review. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-05



 

PES/bjm/ PS10M.013 
 

Agenda Item-Ratification of Contract Extension - AFSCME and City of Troy 2006-2011 
Page Two 
 
 
With this agreement, over 60% of the employees have agreed to wage concessions.  In 
addition to the Classified and Exempt employee group, this is the third bargaining unit to 
ratify a concessionary agreement.   
 
 
 
PES/bjm 
 
Attachment 
 
 





 

 
 
February 11, 2010                             
 
 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  
  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy 
 
 
 
 
On February 2, 2010 the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority adopted two resolutions 
regarding the Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund (LSRRF) Policy.  The first resolution 
approved an amendment to the LSRRF Policy which provided for City Council’s ability to divest 
the LSRRF.  The second resolution recommended that the Troy City Council return 80% of the 
money in the LSRRF proportionally to the taxing jurisdictions that contributed to the LSRRF.  
City Council has the authority to return the captured tax dollars if it is in the best interest to 
return a portion of the money held in the LSRRF, based upon paragraph 26 of the proposed 
LSRRF Policy.  
 
The LSRRF currently includes approximately $2,861,836.  The City of Troy proportional tax 
capture is $1,712,236.  Based upon the TBRA’s amendment of LSRRF Policy and an 80% 
divestment of the LSRRF the City of Troy would be paid approximately $1,369,789.  The 
LSRRF would then have a balance of $572,367, this amount is sufficient to cover any TBRA 
obligations or loans in the future.  The following charts summarize the proposed dispersal of 
tax capture: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-06



Amendment of Local Site Remediation  
Revolving Fund Policy 
February 11, 2010 
Page Two 
 
 
 
   

City 
 

County 
Community 

College 
 

Total 
 
BRA Revolving Balance 

  
$1,712,236.48 

 
$857,119.88 

 
$292,479.64 

 
$2,861,836.00  

      
20% Retention  $342,447.30 $171,423.98 $58,495.93 $572,367.20 
      
80% Disbursement  $1,369,789.18 $685,695.91 $233,983.71 $2,289,468.80 

 
 
 
The basis for divesting 80% of the LSRRF is twofold.  There is very little interest in the 
development community for the LSRRF loans for the redevelopment of Brownfield sites.  The 
City has not received one request or inquiry to use the LSRRF.  Oakland County was 
contacted and they are experiencing the same lack of interest in their brownfield loan program.  
Finally, given the financial crisis all taxing jurisdictions are experiencing it is prudent to provide 
additional revenue by refunding the tax capture. 
 
City Council will need to adopt two resolutions to implement the distribution of the LSRRF 
funds.  The first is a resolution to approve the Amended LSRRF Policy and a second resolution 
is to return 80% of them funds in the LSRRF proportionally to the taxing jurisdictions.  
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality: 
 
 
 
         
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MFM/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\02.15.10 – Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Amended Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy 
 
The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority established a Site Remediation 
Revolving Fund to further promote the redevelopment of Brownfield sites located 
in the City of Troy.  The Authority established the following terms and conditions 
to the Revolving Loan Fund in October 2006: 
 

1. No grants shall be provided to an entity.  Moneys in the BRA Local Site 
Remediation Revolving fund are limited to loans where there is 
sufficient collateral or security to insure repayment of the loans or other 
administrative or legal obligations for eligible properties that qualify as 
eligible activities. 

 
2. The tax increment financing shall be collected only for a maximum 

period of five years after the time that the tax increment revenues are 
equal to the amount of eligible expenses paid pursuant to an approved 
brownfield plan. 

 
3. Loan proceeds can only be used for eligible expenses for eligible 

properties, as defined within the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Act. 

 
4. An application should be submitted for any request for a loan.  The 

application must detail the site assessment activities completed to 
date.  The application must also describe the overall Brownfield 
project, and how the loan funding would advance the project goals.   

 
5. Complete loan applications must either be approved or denied within 

90 days of the date of submission to the Authority, unless a longer time 
is agreed to by the applicant and the BRA. 

 
6. All loan applicants must have completed Phase I and Phase II site 

assessment in order to qualify for a revolving loan fund.  The fund may 
not be used to complete a Phase I and Phase II site assessment. 

 
7. A Loan Agreement shall be executed prior to the payment of any loan 

from the fund. 
 

8. The interest in the loan shall not exceed the interest rate collected by 
the City in special assessments. 

 
9. The extent of the applicant’s contribution to environmental 

contamination on the property will be considered.  A property that is 
subject to a unilateral administrative order, consent or judicial decree 
under CERCLA shall not qualify for a revolving loan fund. 

 



10. Each loan shall not exceed $1,000,000. 
 

11. The repayment term for each loan shall not exceed 7 years absent 
extraordinary circumstances. 

 
12. The total amount of loans and grants received shall not be more than 

100% of the total approved environmental project costs. 
 

13. An amount not exceeding 10% of the total loan can be used for 
administrative purposes, including but not limited to attorney fees, 
permit fees, BEA fees. 

 
14. In multi-phase projects, loans should be distributed only on a phase-

by-phase basis. 
 

15. Tax increment financing from an approved BRA Plan can be used to 
repay the revolving loan funds. 

 
16. The BRA shall be afforded flexibility in the approval of collateral for the 

loan.  Acceptable collateral can include security interest in accounts, 
liens on property, and/or personal guarantees, as long as the BRA is 
satisfied that the collateral is sufficient to insure payment of the loan. 

 
17. The loan applicants shall be the owners of the property or persons with 

a substantial interest in the property where a brownfield is located. 
 

18. The loan applicants shall disclose whether they are currently are or  
have been in the past subject to any penalties resulting from 
environmental non-compliance. 

 
19. In the event of a default, there shall be reasonable efforts to enforce 

the terms of the loan agreement, as permitted by law.  The choice of 
remedies are at the option of the BRA, and include but are not limited 
to: charging a penalty; proceeding against the assets pledged as 
collateral to cover losses to the loan; placing a lien on the property, 
and also recovering court costs and attorney fees necessarily incurred 
in enforcing the terms of the loan agreement. 

 
20. The loan applicant must be compliant with federal, state, and local 

laws, and shall also be compliant with any court order, consent decree, 
or similar governing documents. 

 
21. The loan recipients shall retain financial records including federal tax 

returns for a period of at least 3 years after repayment.  These records 
shall document the use of the loan funds. 

 



22. In accordance with the provisions of the City Charter, any TBRA 
member or City officer or employee shall disclose and recuse 
themselves if they have any significant financial interest in, or benefit 
from, brownfield activities associated with the loan. 

 
23. Loan applicants must be current with all federal, state, and local tax 

obligations. 
 

24. The MDEQ must approve a loan application where school tax 
increments are going to be used to fund eligible activities. 

 
25. The school tax increment should be segregated from all other moneys 

received. 
 

26. If the Troy City Council, after receiving a recommendation from the 
TBRA, determines that it is in the best interest to return a portion of the 
money held in the LSRRF, on a proportional basis to the taxing 
jurisdictions that contributed to the LSRRF, then City Council can pass 
a resolution setting forth the amount to be returned.  This amount shall 
not include the amounts required to satisfy any outstanding obligations 
of the TBRA or the LSRRF, and shall be less than 90% of the total 
amount available.   

 
27. If the TBRA is dissolved or the LSRRF is dissolved, then any 

remaining money in the LSRRF shall be returned to the contributing 
taxing jurisdictions on a proportional basis, after the satisfaction of all 
outstanding obligations.   

 









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Hal Weemhoff of First United Methodist Church gave the Invocation. The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 1, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 Robin Beltramini 
 Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
 Martin Howrylak 
 Mary Kerwin 
 Maureen McGinnis 
 Dane Slater 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a proclamation to Dr. 

Barbara Fowler, Superintendent of Troy School District and Wendy Underwood, 
President of Troy School District’s Board of Education recognizing February 2010 as 
National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) Month in Troy. 
  

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 22. 
Suspend Rules 
 
Resolution #2010-01-029 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by  Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council in accordance with Rule 22. Suspend Rules. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Vote on Resolution to Reduce Public Comment- Rules of Procedure for the City Council; 
Rule 16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2010-02-030 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment from five (5) minutes 
as established by Rules of Procedure for the City Council; Rule 16 – Members of the Public & 
Visitors to three (3) minutes  
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

 
Richard Peters: Discussed ways to save the economy 
Gordon Schepke: Discussed several topic; Opposes millage proposal 
Jack Witt: Opposes millage proposal 
Janice Daniels: Opposes millage proposal; Opposes tax relief recently given to 

Troy businesses 
Vera Milz: Supports millage proposal 
Jerry Savell: Supports millage proposal 
Harry Philo: Supports millage proposal 
Paul Beck: Opposes millage proposal 
William Wonsik: Opposes tax relief recently given to Troy businesses 
James Kinsler: Supports City employees making similar concessions to what his 

employees made 
Don Barnes: Supports millage proposal and discussed cuts City has already 

made 
Cathy Fucinari: Citizen Academy graduate supports millage proposal 
Bill Briggs: Supports millage proposal 
Swarn Rajpal: Supports millage proposal 
Ward Randol: Supports millage proposal 
Lee Gillett: Spoke on behalf of several  members of the Troy Leadership 

Coalition who support the millage proposal 
Victor Lenivov: Opposes millage proposal 
Mary Ann Bernardi: Opposes millage proposal; Discussed other various topics 
James Savage: Opposes the Transit Center project 
John Witt: Discussed various budget topics; Opposes millage proposal 
Charlene Femminineo: Discussed various budget topics 
Christine Hill: Supports millage proposal 
Steve Toth: Supports millage proposal 
William Cowger: Supports millage proposal 
Ed Spillers: Supports Transit Center; Supports millage proposal 
Ann Comiskey: Supports millage proposal 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

The Meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:01 PM. 
 
Council Member Slater requested clarification from the City Manager and City Administration 
regarding statements made during Public Comment. 
 
G.  POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Appointments: Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution #2010-02-031 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds             Planning Commission Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
 
Philip Sanzica        Planning Commission Alternate Rep.* - Term Expires 01/31/2011  
*Planning Commission’s recommendation 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Resolution #2010-02-032 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*  
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Michael Carolan      *Resident - Term Expires 01/01/2015  
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

H-3 Approval of Request to Reschedule 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 
 
Resolution #2010-02-033 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCHEDULES 2009 Liquor Violation Hearings 
from Wednesday, February 10th and Wednesday, February 17th to Monday, March 1st and 
Monday, March 15th 2010 Regular City Council Meetings. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-02-034 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7   
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-2  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of January 25, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a) Recognition of National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) – February, 2010  
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 
I-5 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request  
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mon Jin Lau, located 
at 1515 East Maple Road for the use of fireworks at its annual Chinese New Year celebration on 
February 23rd and February 24th, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Fire Prevention 
Division to inspect the fireworks to be used along with the site to assure compliance with 
applicable codes and standards for such a fireworks display. 
 
I-6 Approval of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be 

Located at 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 
  
a) 
 

New License 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-6a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be located at 2360 Rochester, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} above all others” CONTINGENT 
upon passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

b) 
 

Agreement 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-6b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License to be located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} CONTINGENT upon 
passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Approval of Simbad, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed 

Business to 336 John R and a New SDM License and New Dance-Entertainment 
Permit to be held in Conjunction – MLCC Request #528006 

 
a) 
 

Transfer License and New SDM License/Dance-Entertainment Permit 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-7a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Simbad, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business, located in Escrow at 
29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, from F&S Food Service, Inc.; 
David H. Fink, Receiver; transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and requests a new SDM License and new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Request #528006} “above all others” 
CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
b) 
 

Agreement 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-7b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Simbad, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed Business, located in Escrow 
at 29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland County, from F&S Food Service, Inc.; 
David H. Fink, Receiver; transfer location (Governmental Unit) (MLC 436.1531(1) to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and requests a new SDM License and new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Request #528006} CONTINGENT upon 
passing the Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 Approval of Ramchin, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C and 

SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food) to 2940 Rochester – MLCC 
Request #533231 

 
 a) 
 

Transfer License 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-8a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Ramchin, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed Business 
with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford 
Township, Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn, Inc; Transfer Location 
Governmental Unit issued under MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #533231} above all others” CONTINGENT upon passing the 
Troy Building and Fire Department Final Inspections; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
   
b) 
 

Agreement 

Resolution #2010-02-034-I-8b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Ramchin Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM Licensed 
Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford 
Township, Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn, Inc; Transfer Location 
Governmental Unit issued under MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #533231}, CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Building and 
Fire Department Final Inspections and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
I-9 2010 Poverty Exemption Guidelines  
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-9 
 
RESOLVED, That, pursuant to MCL 211.7u, Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
proposed City of Troy Poverty Exemption Guidelines for 2010, as presented by the City 
Assessor in a memorandum dated January 26, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

I-10 Sandler v. City of Troy and MMRMA  
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Alex Sandler v. 
City of Troy and Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City in this matter.  
 
I-11 Troy v. Atto Construction Co. (Rochester Road Improvement Project)  
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed consent judgment in the 
City of Troy v Atto Construction Company, et al, condemnation case, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated therein; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the consent judgment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-12 Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way – Michigan Catholic Credit Union 

– Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019 
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way, for 
the consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from the Michigan Catholic Credit Union, 
owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-359-019; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-13 Acceptance of Two Permanent Sidewalk Easements – RPS Troy, LLC – Sidwell 

#88-20-22-356-032 and -033 
  
Resolution #2010-02-034-I-13 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the two Permanent Easements for 
sidewalk, each for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from RPS Troy, LLC, owner 
of the properties having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-032 and -033; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 15, 2009  
b) Planning Commission/Draft – January 12, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

M-2 Department Reports: 
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting BidNet On-Line Auction Services – December, 

2009    
Noted and Filed 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

M-5  Communication from Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development 
Services Mark Miller Regarding Update of the Energy Efficiency and Conservation 
Block Grant (EECBG) 

Noted and Filed 

N. STUDY ITEMS 

N-1  No Study Items Submitted 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 

O-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft February 1, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:42 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

NATIONAL CHILDREN OF ALCOHOLICS WEEK 
FEBRUARY 15 – 22, 2010 

 

WHEREAS, It is estimated that one in four children in the United States under age 18 is hurt by family 
alcohol abuse or alcoholism, and that countless others are affected by parental drug use; and  

WHEREAS, There is strong scientific evidence that alcoholism runs in families, with children of alcoholics 
being two- to four-times more likely to develop alcoholism than children of non-alcoholics; and 

WHEREAS, Parental alcohol abuse is a significant factor in a large proportion of child abuse and neglect 
cases; and 

WHEREAS, Young children of alcoholics exhibit symptoms of depression and anxiety to a greater extent 
than children of non-alcoholics; and  

WHEREAS, Young children of alcoholics often have difficulty in school and are more likely to be truant, 
drop out of school, repeat grades, or be referred to a school counselor or psychologist; and 

WHEREAS, Children of alcoholics, with interest and support from family, friends, health professionals, 
teachers, clergy and others, can avoid the negative effects of familial alcoholism; and 

WHEREAS, The Troy Community Coalition and caring members of our community are committed to helping 
children of alcoholics; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby proclaim  
February 15-22, 2010 as Children of Alcoholics Week in the City of Troy, Michigan; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council calls upon all citizens, community agencies, 
organizations and businesses in Troy to encourage all citizens of Troy to help break the silence often 
surrounding familial alcoholism and reach out to support the children and their families. 

 
Presented this 15th day of February 2010. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
I-03a



 

 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS 90th ANNIVERSARY 
FEBRUARY 14, 2010 

 
WHEREAS, League of Women Voters is a nonpartisan political organization, that has fought since 1920 to 
improve our system of government and impact public policies through citizen education and advocacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, League members are constantly striving to serve their communities to make strong, safe, fair 
and vibrant places to live; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League believes in representative government and in the individual liberties established in 
the Constitution of the United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League has always worked to promote the values and processes of representative 
government; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League collaborates with other organizations to achieve mutual goals, increase civic 
participation, create lasting change in the community and to make democracy work; and 
 
WHEREAS, The League, for 90 years, has held the public trust by respectfully bringing elected leaders and 
the public together through non-partisan, civil means and through thoughtfully advancing solutions; and 
 
WHEREAS, Communities across the country have benefited tremendously from the countless volunteer 
hours donated by League members over its 90 year history of enhancing our democracy;  
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, That the City of Troy celebrates this important milestone by 
proclaiming February as “League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month” in honor of the 
League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council urges all residents to pay great tribute and 
respect to the League of Women Voters Troy Area for all they do to make our community healthy, vibrant 
and strong. 
 
Presented this 15th day of February 2010. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-03b



 

 
February 3, 2010 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: – Award To Low Bidder –Printing/Distribution of 

Water and Sewer Bills 
 
Background 
 On December 16, 2009, bid proposals were received to provide one-year requirements of production, 

printing and distribution of the City of Troy water and sewer bills, with an option to renew for three (3) 
additional years. 

 171 vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) bid responses received and two (2) 
statements of no bid. 

 The award recommendation considered the vendor that best satisfies the following combination of 
factors: cost, professional competence, references, ability to meet processing time requirements, and 
best suited to meet the needs of the Water Division.  

 DataMail Services, of Madison Heights, MI is the low total bidder providing printing and distribution 
services for 17 years. 

 DataMail Services will be completing all of the work in-house.  They have over 275 clients that they 
currently serve with similar printing and mailing service needs including Cities of Warren, Sterling 
Heights and Rochester Hills. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Water Division. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-46, one-year requirements of Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bill services was 

competitively bid in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services to the 

City of Troy.   
 
Recommendation 
 City management and the Public Works department recommend awarding the contract to low total 

bidder, DataMail Services of Madison Heights, MI for an estimated total cost of $9,614.00, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation. The contract shall commence May 1, 2010 and expire April 30, 
2011. 

 
 S:/Miller’s Review/Agenda 02.15.10 SR1: Printing/Distribution of Water&Sewer Bills Letter  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-46
Opening Date -- 12/16/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 2/3/2010 PRINTING OF WATER & SEWER BILLS

VENDOR NAME: jh/sl DataMail DivDat Lasercom LLC Centron Data
Services Services, Inc.

CHECK # - 9117602165 100285715 9117602166 9445500507
CHECK AMOUNT - $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE-YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
LASER PRINTING AND DISTRIBUTION FOR THE CITY OF TROY'S WATER AND SEWER BILLS, WITH AN
OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE(3) ADDITIONAL YEARS

EST QTY SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 One Time, Account Set-Up 500.00$                -$                       -$                     -$                      
1 Edit Charge - Hourly Rate 175.00$                150.00$                 -$                     35.00$                  

109,400 Water Bill Stock -  Offset Printing 0.0150$                0.0092$                 0.020$                 0.0153$                
109,400 Processing & Printing 0.0065$                0.0205$                 0.030$                 0.030$                  
109,400 Mail Service- (Fold, Insert, Sort,etc) 0.025$                  0.0271$                 0.025$                 0.0180$                
109,400 Carrier Envelopes - Printing on #10 0.0199$                0.0312$                 0.0221$               0.0267$                

102,000 Return Envelopes - Printing on #9 0.01495$              0.0217$                 0.0211$               0.0279$                *
325 House Holding - 6 x 9 Envelope 0.23076$              0.65$                     -$                     1.00$                    
200 House Holding - 9 x 12 Envelope 0.375$                  0.91$                     -$                     1.00$                    

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 9,614.06$             12,383.85$           12,774.94$          13,251.80$          
* Price for 6 months

.0298 X 51,000 =

PROCESSING TIME:  60 Hours $1,519.80

Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

SERVICE FACILITY: 747 E. Whitcomb Ave. 2230 Elliott Drive 1175 Devin Drive

Location Madison Heights Ferndale Troy Norton Shores, MI
24-Hour Phone Number 313-530-3672 248-721-2787 248-670-1120 800-732-8787
Hours of Operation 7 AM to 6 PM 24/7 7 AM to 6 PM    M-F M - F  24hr/Day

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 10 Net 30 Net 30 N30

DELIVERY / COMPLETION:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Signed - Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX XX XX
Not Attached

COST BREAKDOWN - SUPPLY INVENTORY
Attached XX XX XX XX
Not Attached

NO BIDS:  Reprographics Motor City Imaging
Edge Document Solutions, LLC BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Emily Frontera
Richard Shepler Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Diane Fisher Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz
G: ITB-COT 09-46 Water & Sewer Bills

60 Continuous Hours - per bid proposal (page 2 of 3)

Corrected mathematical errors



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-46
Opening Date -- 12/16/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 2/3/2010 PRINTING OF WATER & SEWER BILLS

VENDOR NAME: TBF Graphics/ HOV Services
Digital Inc

CHECK # - 100339662 000124199
CHECK AMOUNT - $2,100.00 $2,100.00

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE-YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF
LASER PRINTING AND DISTRIBUTION FOR THE CITY OF TROY'S WATER AND SEWER BILLS, WITH AN
OPTION TO RENEW FOR THREE(3) ADDITIONAL YEARS

EST QTY SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 One Time, Account Set-Up 300.00$               700.00$               
1 Edit Charge - Hourly Rate 100.00$               125.00$               

109,400 Water Bill Stock -  Offset Printing 0.018$                 0.0123$               
109,400 Processing & Printing 0.065$                 0.0603$               
109,400 Mail Service- (Fold, Insert, Sort,etc) -$                     0.0468$               
109,400 Carrier Envelopes - Printing on #10 0.028$                 0.0315$               
102,000 Return Envelopes - Printing on #9 0.021$                 0.0245$               

325 House Holding - 6 x 9 Envelope 0.21$                   0.0313$               
200 House Holding - 9 x 12 Envelope 0.25$                   0.08$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 14,803.65$          19,858.63$          
Corrected mathematical errors

PROCESSING TIME:  60 Hours
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

SERVICE FACILITY: 803 So. Washington

Location Saginaw, MI Livonia, MI
24-Hour Phone Number 800-878-5540 734-632-1600
Hours of Operation 8AM to 5PM  M-F 24/7

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 15 Net 30

DELIVERY / COMPLETION:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank No Exceptions
*NOTE: Mail Service

included with cost
of processing

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed - Y or N Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:
Attached XX XX
Not Attached

COST BREAKDOWN - SUPPLY INVENTORY
Attached XX XX
Not Attached

G: ITB-COT 09-46 Water & Sewer Bills

60 Continuous Hours - per bid proposal (page 2 of 3)



 

 
 
January 20, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for name change of ownership of Marriott International, Inc. 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) requests to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC 

(A Delaware Limited Liability Company) as Co-License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, 
Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) as Co-License in 2009 B-Hotel & SDM Licensed Business with 
Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and change Official Permit (Food) hours from 
weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 7:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. to weekdays, 6:00 A.M. 
to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. 

 On November 9, 2009, Mr. Patrick Howe, Attorney for the applicant, answered questions for the 
Liquor Advisory Committee. 

 Mr. Howe explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to update the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission records due to a change in business ownership.  The management of 
the hotel and the Marriott name will remain unchanged.  Also, this request includes a change in 
the start time of food service on Sundays. 

 The Marriott Hotel is a national chain which has been host to the President of the United States, 
numerous dignitaries through the world, United States Military Dignitaries, National Football 
League Teams, National Basketball Association Teams, and National Collegiate Athletic 
Association Teams. 

 The Committee approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-05



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Marriott 



















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 2 of 4 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 12, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), 200 West Big 

Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 requests to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company) as Co-Licensee and add Sunstone Big 
Beaver Lessee, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) as Co-Licensee in 2009 B-
Hotel & SDM Licensed Business with Dance-5 Entertainment Permit, Official 
Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 West Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County: and change Official Food Permit (Food) Hours 
from weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 7:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. 
to weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M 
{MLCC Req. #519011}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney Patrick Howe. 
 
Mr. Howe explained that this request is made to update MLCC records due to a 
change in business ownership.  The management of the hotel remains unchanged.  
Also, this request includes a change in the start time of the food service hours.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that all inspections have been approved. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-021 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) 200 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, MI 48084 to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company) as Co-Licensee and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. (A Delaware 
Corporation) as Co-Licensee in 2009 B-Hotel & SDM Licensed Business with Dance-
Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 
West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County: and to change Official Food 
Permit (Food) Hours from weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 7:00 A.M. 
to 12:00 P.M. to weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 
P.M be APPROVED. 
 

campbellld
Highlight



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 3 of 4 

Yes:  4 
No:  1  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 

 
2. Grand Azteca V Inc., requests to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C 

Licensed Business, located in escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 
48306, Oakland Township, Oakland County, From Red Lotus, LLC & transfer 
location (Governmental Unit) (MCL 436L.1531 (1) to 935 East Long Lake Troy, 
MI 48085, Oakland County and request New Official Permit (Food) & SDM 
License {MLCC Req.#524757}. 

  
Present to answer questions from the Committee were owners Silviano Arellano-
Aguaya and Juan Ramos. 
 
The business owners provided the Committee with menus for their five restaurant 
locations.  The Long Lake Road location has approximately 20 booths and the bar is 
located on the left in the rear of the restaurant.  The employee liquor training will be 
obtained through TIPS.   
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-022 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Grand Azteca V Inc., to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C Licensed Business, 
located in escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 48306, Oakland Township, 
Oakland County, from Red Lotus, LLC, and to transfer location (Governmental Unit) 
(MCL 436L.1531 (1) to 935 East Long Lake Road, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County, 
and to receive New Official Permit (Food) & SDM License be APPROVED. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that there have been no liquor violations and 
inspections have been approved.   
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Student representative Lauren Harden was introduced. 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following information items: 
 

campbellld
Highlight



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 8, 2010  
SUBJECT: City of Troy v. MNAD Property, LLC  

 
 

 

As part of the Rochester Road Improvement Project, the City needed to acquire right 
of way and a public utility easement from the property at 3424 Rochester Road (CPA office).  
A condemnation lawsuit was initiated, since we were unable to agree with the property 
owners for a voluntary sale.  The only remaining issue is the amount of just compensation to 
be paid for the property.  The case was recently submitted to case evaluation.  
Subsequently, we were able to negotiate a proposed consent judgment, which would 
finalize this case for the amount of the case evaluation, plus statutory costs and fees.   

We recommend approval of the proposed consent judgment.  80% of the amount will 
be paid with federal funds, and the City is responsible for paying 20%, under the Rochester 
Road Improvement Project contract.  Please let us know if you have any questions about 
this matter.   

campbellld
Text Box
I-06



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation,  
 
   Plaintiff, 
 

v       Case No.  09-097984 CC 
        Hon. Leo Bowman 
MNAD Property, LLC, a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company; Antonio Agosta;  
Rosa Agosta; and Consumers 
Power Company, n/k/a Consumers Energy  
Company, 
   Defendants. 
________________________________/ 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)   Vincent P. Provenzano (P28673) 
Christopher James Forsyth (P63025) One Energy Plaza 
Attorneys for Plaintiff   RM EP11-450 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   Jackson, MI 49201 
Troy, MI 48084    (517) 788-1380 
(248) 524-3320 
 
Alan T. Ackerman   (P10025) 
Ackerman Ackerman & Dynkowski 
Attorney for Defendant, MNAD Property 
100 W. Long Lake Rd., Ste. 210 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 537-1155 
________________________________________/ 
 

CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT, MNAD PROPERTY,LLC. 
 

At a session of said Court held in the  
Courthouse in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan 
 
on______________________ 
 

PRESENT:  _____________________________ 
HON. LEO BOWMAN 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 



This matter is before the Court upon Stipulation of the City of Troy (“Plaintiff”) and 

MNAD (“Defendant”), subsequent to the case evaluation process, where both parties 

accepted the case evaluation award.  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Title to the property described in the Declaration of Taking entered by this 

Court on February 5, 2009 has vested in Plaintiff by virtue of filing the Complaint and 

Declaration of Taking, depositing the estimated just compensation and recording a copy of 

a Declaration of Taking with the Register of Deeds of Oakland County. 

2. Total and Final Just Compensation for the taking in this matter is determined 

to be $65,000 (Sixty Five Thousand Dollars).  Plaintiff is entitled to a credit in the amount 

of $29,100 (Twenty Nine Thousand and One Hundred Dollars), for the initial estimated just 

compensation which was previously paid in this matter, leaving a payment due in the 

amount of $35,900 (Thirty Five Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars) for additional just 

compensation.  In addition to Just Compensation, Plaintiff shall pay to Defendant $1,579 

(One Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Nine Dollars) in statutory interest on the additional 

just compensation due pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 

213.51 et seq.   

3. As set forth in paragraph 2, Plaintiff shall make a payment to Defendant in 

the amount of $37,479.00 (Thirty Seven Thousand Four Hundred Seventy Nine Dollars) 

for additional just compensation and interest.  This amount shall be paid in a check 

payable to MNAD Propery, LLC..   

4. Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendant the amount of $18,600 (Eighteen 

Thousand Sixty Six Dollars) for statutory reimbursement of attorney fees, expert fees and 



costs pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq. This 

amount shall be paid in a check payable to MNAD Property, LLC and Ackerman and 

Ackerman PC Client Fund Account.   

5. The payments required pursuant to this Consent Judgment are made and 

accepted in compromise and settlement of any and all claims of Defendant against Plaintiff 

for just compensation for any of the property described in the Declaration of Taking or 

otherwise arising out of the taking for public purposes of the property described in the 

Declaration of Taking. 

6. Subject to the enforcement of the terms herein, this Consent Judgment 

constitutes a final disposition of this case. 

 
     

       ________________________________ 
      HON. LEO BOWMAN 

Circuit Court Judge  

 

STIPULATED TO AND APPROVED 
AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

______________________________ __________________________________ 
Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025)  Alan T. Ackerman (10025) 
City of Troy-City Attorney’s Office  ACKERMAN, ACKERMAN & DYNKOWSKI 
Attorney for Plaintiff    Attorney for Defendant MNAD Property LLC. 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   100 W. Long Lake Road, Ste. 210   
Troy, MI 48084    Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 524-3320    (248) 537-1155 
 

 
       

 



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 8, 2010 
SUBJECT: City of Troy v. Picano Land Limited Partnership  

 
 

 

For the Rochester Road Improvement Project, the City needed to acquire right of 
way and a public utility easement from the vacant property which is owned by Picano 
Limited Land Partnership and is used for overflow parking on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Big Beaver Road.   A condemnation lawsuit was initiated, since we were 
unable to agree with the property owners for a voluntary sale.  The only remaining issue is 
the amount of just compensation to be paid for the property.  The case was recently 
submitted to case evaluation.  Subsequently, we were able to negotiate a proposed consent 
judgment, which would finalize this case for the amount of the case evaluation, plus 
statutory costs and fees.   

We recommend approval of the proposed consent judgment.  80% of the amount will 
be paid with federal funds, and the City is responsible for paying 20%, under the Rochester 
Road Improvement Project contract.  Please let us know if you have any questions about 
this matter.   

campbellld
Text Box
I-07



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation,  
 
   Plaintiff, 
 

v       Case No.09-097975-CC 
        Hon. Edward Sosnick  
Picano Land Limited Partnership, Warren Bank; 
County of Oakland; Michigan Bell Telephone 
Company, n/k/a SBC; Oakland County 
Department of Public Works; Consumers Power 
Company, n/k/a Consumers Energy  
Company, 
   Defendants. 
________________________________________________________________/ 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office      Gerald Van Wyke (P21785) 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)                    Melissa R. McTaggart (P21785) 
Allan T. Motzny   (P37580)                    Gerald Van Wyke, P.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff                             Attorney for Defendant Warren Bank 
500 W. Big Beaver Road                       5440 Corporate Drive, Ste. 250 
Troy, MI 48084                                      Troy, MI 48098 
(248) 524-3320                                      (248) 641-7100 
 
Alan T. Ackerman  (P10025)                 Albert Calille (P26819) 
Darius W. Dynkowski (P52382)             Attorney for SBC 
Ackerman Ackerman & Dynkowski        444 Michigan Avenue, Ste. 1750 
Attorney for Defendant, Picano             Detroit, MI 48226   
100 W. Long Lake Road                        (313) 223-0964 
Suite 210 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304-2774 
(248) 537-1155 
________________________________________________________________/ 
 

CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT, PICANO LAND LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP 

 
At a session of said Court held in the 

Courthouse in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan 

 
on______________________ 



 
PRESENT:  _____________________________ 

HON. EDWARD SOSNICK 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 

 

This matter is before the Court upon Stipulation of the City of Troy (“Plaintiff”) and 

Picano Land Limited Partnership (“Defendant”), subsequent to the case evaluation 

process, where both parties accepted the case evaluation award.  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Title to the property described in the Declaration of Taking entered by this 

Court on February 5, 2009 has vested in Plaintiff by virtue of filing the Complaint and 

Declaration of Taking, depositing the estimated just compensation and recording a copy of 

a Declaration of Taking with the Register of Deeds of Oakland County. 

2. Total and Final Just Compensation for the taking in this matter is determined 

to be $45,000 (Forty Five Thousand Dollars).  Plaintiff is entitled to a credit in the amount 

of $27,300 (Twenty Seven Thousand Three Hundred Dollars), for the initial estimated just 

compensation which was previously paid in this matter, leaving a payment due in the 

amount of $17,700 (Seventeen Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars) for additional just 

compensation.  In addition to Just Compensation, Plaintiff shall pay to Defendant $778.00 

(Seven Hundred Seventy Eight Dollars) in statutory interest on the additional just 

compensation due pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et 

seq.   

3. As set forth in paragraph 2, Plaintiff shall make a payment to Defendant in 

the amount of $18,478.00 for additional just compensation and interest.  This amount shall 

be paid in a check payable to Picano Land Limited Partnership and Warren Bank.   



4. Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendant the amount of $9,819.00 (Nine 

Thousand Eight Hundred Nineteen Dollars) for statutory reimbursement of attorney fees, 

expert fees and costs pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 

213.51 et seq. This amount shall be paid in a check payable to Picano Land Limited 

Partnership, LLC and Ackerman and Ackerman Client Fund Account.   

5. The payments required pursuant to this Consent Judgment are made and 

accepted in compromise and settlement of any and all claims of Defendant against Plaintiff 

for just compensation for any of the property described in the Declaration of Taking or 

otherwise arising out of the taking for public purposes of the property described in the 

Declaration of Taking. 

6. Subject to the enforcement of the terms herein, this Consent Judgment 

constitutes a final disposition of this case. 

 
      ________________________________ 
      HON. EDWARD SOSNICK 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge  

STIPULATED TO AND APPROVED 
AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

______________________________ __________________________________ 
Allan T. Motzny (P37580)   Alan T. Ackerman (10025) 
City of Troy-City Attorney’s Office  ACKERMAN, ACKERMAN & DYNKOWSKI 
Attorney for Plaintiff    Attorney for Defendant MNAD Property LLC. 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   100 W. Long Lake Road, Ste. 210   
Troy, MI 48084    Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 524-3320    (248) 537-1155 
 

 
       

 



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: February 8, 2010 
SUBJECT: City of Troy v. Rochester Square Associates  

 
 

 

As part of the Rochester Road Improvement Project, the City needed to acquire right 
of way and a public utility easement from the property at 3946 Rochester Road (Mr. B’s/ 
Dolly’s Pizza/ TCBY/ etc.).  A condemnation lawsuit was initiated, since we were unable to 
agree with the property owners for a voluntary sale.  The only remaining issue is the amount 
of just compensation to be paid for the property.  The case was recently submitted to case 
evaluation.  Subsequently, we were able to negotiate a proposed consent judgment, which 
would finalize this case for the amount of the case evaluation, plus statutory costs and fees.   

We recommend approval of the proposed consent judgment.  80% of the amount will 
be paid with federal funds, and the City is responsible for paying 20%, under the Rochester 
Road Improvement Project contract.  Please let us know if you have any questions about 
this matter.   

campbellld
Text Box
I-08



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 

 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation,  
 
   Plaintiff, 

v       Case No. 09-097971-CC 
        Hon. Edward Sosnick 
Rochester Square Associates, a  
Michigan Co-Partnership; Canada Life  
Assurance Company, a corporation  
organized and existing under the laws of  
Canada; and Consumers Power  
Company, n/k/a Consumers Energy  
Company, 
   Defendants. 
________________________________/ 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
 
Alan T. Ackerman  (P10025) 
Ackerman Ackerman & Dynkowski 
Attorney for Defendant, Rochester Square Assoc. 
100 W. Long Lake Road 
Suite 210 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304-2774 
(248) 537-1155 
____________________________________________/ 

 
CONSENT JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT, ROCHESTER SQUARE 

ASSOCIATES 
 

At a session of said Court held in the 
Courthouse in the City of Pontiac, 

Oakland County, Michigan 
 

on______________________ 
 

PRESENT:  _____________________________ 
HON. EDWARD SOSNICK 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge 



This matter is before the Court upon Stipulation of the City of Troy (“Plaintiff”) and 

Rochester Square Associates (“Defendant”), subsequent to the case evaluation process, 

where both parties accepted the case evaluation award.  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Title to the property described in the Declaration of Taking entered by this 

Court on February 5, 2009 has vested in Plaintiff by virtue of filing the Complaint and 

Declaration of Taking, depositing the estimated just compensation and recording a copy of 

a Declaration of Taking with the Register of Deeds of Oakland County. 

2. Total and Final Just Compensation for the taking in this matter is determined 

to be $270,000.00 (Two Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars).  Plaintiff is entitled to a 

credit in the amount of $160,415.00 (One Hundred Sixty Thousand Four Hundred Fifteen 

Dollars), for the initial estimated just compensation which was previously paid in this 

matter, leaving a payment due in the amount of $ 109,585.00 (One Hundred Nine 

Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Five Dollars) for additional just compensation.  In addition 

to Just Compensation, Plaintiff shall pay to Defendant $4,821.00 (Four Thousand Eight 

Hundred Twenty One Dollars) in statutory interest on the additional just compensation due 

pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq.   

3. As set forth in paragraph 2, Plaintiff shall make a payment to Defendant in 

the amount of $114,406.00 (One Hundred Fourteen Thousand Four Hundred Six Dollars) 

for additional just compensation and interest.  This amount shall be paid in a check 

payable to Rochester Square Associates and Canada Life Assurance Company.   

4. Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendant the amount of $47,383.00 (Forty Seven 

Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Three Dollars) for statutory reimbursement of attorney 



fees, expert fees and costs pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 

213.51 et seq. This amount shall be paid in a check payable to Rochester Square 

Associates and Ackerman and Ackerman P.C. Client Fund Account.    

5. The payments required pursuant to this Consent Judgment are made and 

accepted in compromise and settlement of any and all claims of Defendant against Plaintiff 

for just compensation for any of the property described in the Declaration of Taking or 

otherwise arising out of the taking for public purposes of the property described in the 

Declaration of Taking. 

6. Subject to the enforcement of the terms herein, this Consent Judgment 

constitutes a final disposition of this case. 

      ________________________________ 
      HON. EDWARD SOSNICK 

Oakland County Circuit Court Judge  

STIPULATED TO AND APPROVED 
AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

______________________________ __________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)   Alan T. Ackerman (10025) 
City of Troy-City Attorney’s Office  ACKERMAN, ACKERMAN & DYNKOWSKI 
Attorney for Plaintiff    Attorney for Rochester Square Associates 
500 W. Big Beaver Road   100 W. Long Lake Road, Ste. 210   
Troy, MI 48084    Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 524-3320    (248) 537-1155 
 

 
       

 



 

 
 
February 10, 2010                             
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance 
   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of the 2009 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
 
 
Background 
 The Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) program is a grant program administered by the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency that was created by Congress to assist local fire 
departments in purchasing needed equipment. 

 Troy has submitted annual AFG grant applications since the inception of the program in 2001. 
 This is the third AFG grant that has been awarded to the Troy Fire Department.  
 This grant is to purchase protective equipment for firefighters.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 The grant is for $208,000 and requires a local match of 20% or $41,600. 
 The fire department has budgeted funds in the current operating budget to replace protective 

equipment which will be utilized for the match.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations regarding the acceptance of this grant.  
 
Policy Considerations 
 Acceptance of this grant and the purchase of the protective equipment supports the volunteer 

firefighters who help to make this a safe community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 
Recommendation 
 City management recommends that the AFG grant be accepted in the amount of $208,000 with a 

local match of $41,600 which is budgeted in the Fire Department operating budget.  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-09













Cyi.tYff' CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT
roy······ 
January 27,2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark Miller, Acting Asst. City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

SUBJECT: 	 Traffic Committee Recommendations 
January 20, 2010 

R.ecommendations: 

The Traffic Committee considered this item at the January 20,2010 meeting and made the 
following recommendation (minutes attached): 

II Recommend establishment of an additional NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone 
on the west side of Anvil from Forge to approximately 100 feet north of the intersection 
during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and 2:45 to 3:45 pm, school days only. 

Financial Considerations: 


.. Signs cost approximately $115. 


Policy Considerations: 


I Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 


Traffic Committee\2010\January 20\Recommendation Memo.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
I-10



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES JANUARY 20,2010 DRAFT 


A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, January 20, 2010 in the 
Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall. Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 

PRESENT: Sarah Binkowski 
John Diefenbaker 
Ted Halsey 
Jan Hubbell 
Gordon Schepke 
Pete Ziegenfelder 
Sam Jiang, Student Rep. 

ABSENT: Richard Kilmer 

Also present: Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
Officer Larry Schultz, Troy Police Dept. 

2. Minutes - November 18, 2009 

RESOLUTION #2010-01-01 
Moved by Diefenbaker 
Seconded by Binkowski 

To approve the November 18, 2009 minutes. 

YES: AII-6 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 1 (Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Install Additional NO PARKING Signs on Anvil North of Forge 

Officer Larry Schultz requests establishment of a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING 
zone on the west side of Anvil north of Forge, to provide for better traffic circulation at the 
intersection of Anvil and Forge. See attached report. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - JANUARY 20, 2010 - DRAFT PAGE 2 

RESOLUTION #2010-01-02 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Schepke 

Recommend establishment of an additional NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING 
zone on the west side of Anvil from Forge to approximately 100 feet north of the 
intersection during the hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and 2:45 to 3:45 pm, school days 
only. 

YES: AII-6 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 1 (Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

4. Public Comment 

No one wished to speak on matters not on the agenda. 

5. Other Business 

6. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 

Pete Ziegenfelder, Chair Laurel Nottage, Recording Secretary 

Traffic Committee\2010\January 20\minutes.doc 



 

 
 
February 15, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   Announcement of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemptions 
  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Next Energy Authority (MNEA) has certified the two (2) subject companies as 

Alternative Energy Technology Businesses.  MNEA has approved Personal Property Exemptions 
for these companies, subject to verification of the Personal Property by the local Assessor, and 
subject to City Council approval.  Staff requests this Public Hearing be held on March 1, 2010. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s).  Receipt 

occurred on January 19, 2010. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations at this time. 
 
Options: 
 
 A Public Hearing must occur within sixty (60) days of receipt of the MNEA resolution(s).   
 
 
NL/nl H:\NextEnergy\2010\MemoSetPH02.15.10 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AANNNNOOUUNNCCEEMMEENNTT  

OOFF  PPUUBBLLIICC  HHEEAARRIINNGG  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, March 1, 2010 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider Alternative Energy Personal Property Exemptions approved by the Michigan 

NextEnergy Authority for the following two (2) locations in the City of Troy: 

  

T2N, R11E, of Section 28    United Solar Ovonic Corp. 
1100 W Maple, Troy, Michigan 

 

T2N, R11E, of Section 35    Compact Power, Inc. 
1857 Technology, Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
44001 GARFIELD 
CLINTON TWP MI 48038-1100 

 
UNITED SOLAR OVONIC CORP 
1100 W MAPLE 
TROY MI 48084-5352 

COMPACT POWER INC 
1857 TECHNOLOGY DRIVE 
TROY MI  48083 

DAVE HEIBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE #1000W 
PONTIAC MI 48231 

 

PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND CO PUBL TRANSPORT’N 
1200 N TELEGRAPH 49W 
PONTIAC MI 48231-0049 

OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE RD 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
GEORGE A BEE ADMIN CNTR 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266 

 

MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

WARREN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 

    

Formatted for Avery 5160 Labels    

    

    

    

    

    



Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee – FINAL MINUTES      April 27, 2009 

A meeting of the Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee 
(LDFA) was held on Monday, April 27, 2009 at 3:30 p.m., at City Hall in the Council 
Board Room.  Beltramini called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Robin Beltramini, Chair 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

   Stephanie Bergeron 
   Doug Smith 
 
ABSENT:  Mike Adamczyk 

Mike Kidder 
    
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Miller, Planning Director 
   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Patti Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 
 
 
 
VOTE TO APPROVE OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Resolution # LD-2009-04-001 
Moved by Bergeron 
Seconded by Murphy 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of November 17, 2008 be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
Nays:  None 
Absent: Adamczyk, Kidder 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2009/10 Budget 
 
The 2009/10 budget was discussed and approved. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01a



Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee – FINAL MINUTES      April 27, 2009 

Resolution #LD-2009-04-002 
Moved by Smith 
Seconded by Bergeron 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2009/10 budget is approved as presented and will be submitted 
to City Council for final approval. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
Nays:  None 
Absent: Adamczyk, Kidder 
 
 

B. Election of Officers 
 

Resolution # LD-2009-04-003 
Moved by Murphy 
Seconded by Smith 
 
RESOLVED, That Robin Beltramini is re-elected as Chair and Mark Miller as 
Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
Nays:  None 
Absent: Adamczyk, Kidder 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:36 p.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting:  July 27, 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
Robin Beltramini, Chair 



1 

 TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL September 15, 2009 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, 
September 15, 2009 at the Troy Museum. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to 
order at 7:06 p.m.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Anne Partlan 
   Kent Voigt 
   Paul Lin 
   Doris Schuchter 
   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager   
   
  ABSENT       Sabah Jihad 
        Muriel Rounds 
 
      GUEST    Dave Drouillard 
        5871 Hillmore 
 
Mrs. Schechter was welcomed to the commission. 
 
Resolution #HDC-2009-0-001 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Voigt 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the August 18, 2009 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5  Chambers, Partlan, Voigt, Schechter and Lin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Request to modify 5871 Hillmore 
Mr. Drouillard re-presented his site plan that was approved in 2008. He asked to modify 
the plan by rotating the proposed garage ninety degrees to provide easier vehicular 
access to the structure. The revised plan will comply with city ordinances for set backs. 

 
Resolution #HDC-2009-09-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Voigt 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historic District Commission approves the revised site plan 
for 5871 Hillmore, in which the proposed garage is rotated to face the road. 
 
Yes: 5  Chambers, Partlan, Voigt, Schechter and Lin  
No: 0 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01b



2 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

  
The regular Troy Historic District Commission meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. The 
next regular meeting will be held Tues, October 20, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 

        

           
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL October 20, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
October 20, 2009 at the Troy Museum because there was no quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01c



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL November 3, 2009 
 
This regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, 
November 3, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to 
order at 7:34P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Bob Miller 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
   Leslie Witt 
  
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
  ABSENT: Linda Rivetto 
   Paul Lin 
 
           
Resolution #HDSC-2009-011-001 
Moved by Miller 
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 6, 2009 be approved  
Yes: 3  Miller, Harris-Freeman, and Witt  
No: 0 
 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to Delist 4800 Beach 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2009-11-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman 
Seconded by Witt 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historic District Study Committee approve the Preliminary 
Report to de-list the historic resource at 4800 Beach Road (88-20-18-203-011) as a 
as amended and that it be sent out for review following the protocol outlined in 
Chapter 13 of the City Code. 
Yes: 3 , Miller, Harris-Freeman, and Witt  
No: 0 
 
The committee also decided to schedule the public hearing to finalize the preliminary 
report on February 2, 2010 following the sixty day review period.  The hearing will be 
posted and Mr. And Mrs. Michaels will be notified by mail in compliance with the 
ordinance. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01d



2 

 
 
 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 7:45 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday February 2, 2010 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
                  

             Leslie Witt 
      Chairman 
 

 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL November 12, 2009 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, November 12, 2009, in 
the Small Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Vice Chair Belinda Shelton Duggan called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.  

ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Kul Gauri 
   Paul Lee, Student Representative 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director   
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory and Nancy Wheeler be excused.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-02 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
Resolved, that the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, October 
8, 2009, be approved, with one change. The date of the LAB Special meeting was Thursday, 
October 15th, not the 16th.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-03 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
Resolved, that the minutes of the Special Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, 
October 15, 2009, be approved, with one change. The meeting was a special meeting, not a 
regular meeting.   
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-04 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01e



 2 

RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, November 12, 2009, meeting, be approved. 
  
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Zembrzuski mentioned that she’d heard that signs were posted at 
the Troy Historical Museum and Nature Center that stated that the building would close if the millage 
didn’t pass. C. Russ has checked on this and found no signs. No such signs are posted at the Troy 
Library.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—P. Lee asked for guidance regarding where to vote 
in the upcoming election. The LAB members directed him to contact the City Clerk’s office. A. 
Zembrzuski showed him on his voter’s registration where to vote. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 

A. Drive Up Materials Return—C. Russ updated the LAB members on the status of this project.  
B. Quarterly Statistics—the LAB members reviewed the Quarterly statistics. 
C. Fees Report—C. Russ reviewed the first quarter Fees Report with the LAB members.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Polaris Update—C. Russ updated the LAB members on the progress made with the Polaris 
system, and upcoming projects and goals related to it.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Library Advisory Board Meeting Dates for 2010—B. Duggan will email all LAB members to 
determine a date for the January 2010 board meeting. This will be discussed at the December 
LAB meeting.  

B. 2010 Library Calendar  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-05 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan  
 
RESOLVED, To approve the 2010 Library Calendar of Closed Dates.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. Approval of Suburban Library Cooperative Plan of Service 
  
Resolution #LB-2009-11-06 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the SLC Plan of Service.  
 



 3 

Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report—was received and filed. A copy will be attached to the minutes of this meeting. C. 
Russ provided a copy of the Library’s Annual Report to the LAB members. Copies will be available in 
the library and on the website as well.  
 
Suburban Library Cooperative Report—B. Duggan is Troy’s representative to the SLC Board. SLC 
is on solid financial footing. Investments will be transferred to credit unions so all are FDIC insured. 
The Macomb County Resource & Reference Center will be an auxiliary member of the SLC. The SLC 
Board is sending a letter of congratulations to Harrison Twp, for starting its own library. The library is 
currently staffed by volunteers.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library—C. Russ read the report submitted by the Friends Board. B. 
Duggan expressed that the Friends of TPL are the best friends group she’s ever seen.  
 
Gifts—None 
 
Informational Items 
Website address for Troy Public Library calendar: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
 
VISITORS’ COMMENTS--The LAB members discussed the Visitors’ Comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-07 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:26 P.M.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, December 10, 2009, at 7 pm.  
 
 

 
     
 _____________________________________ 

Belinda Shelton Duggan 
Vice Chairman 
 
 
Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL November 17, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
November 17, 2009 at the Troy Museum because there was no quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, December 15, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01f



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES NOVEMBER 18, 2009 	 FINAL 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, November 18, 2009 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall. Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 p.m. 

1. Roll Call 

PRESENT: 	 Sarah Binkowski 

John Diefenbaker 

Ted Halsey 

Gordon Schepke 

Pete Ziegenfelder 

Sam Jiang, Student Rep. 


ABSENT: Jan Hubbell 

Richard Kilmer 


Also present: Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 

Officer Larry Schultz, Troy Police Dept. 


And 	 Edward Repen, 3674 Forge 

John Marion, 1863 Larchwood 

Jim Blackney, 3668 Forge 

Ann Blackney, 3668 Forge 

Ian Blackney, 3668 Forge 


2. Minutes - October 21, 2009 

RESOLUTION #2009-11-17 
Moved by Binkowski 
Seconded by Diefenbaker 

To approve the October 21,2009 minutes. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. Change the Intersection of Larchwood and Austin to All-Way STOP Control 

John Marion, 1863 Larchwood, requests all-way STOP control at Larchwood and Austin. 
There are significant sight obstructions at that location due to the unusual configuration 
of the intersection. See attached report. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01g



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - NOVEMBER 18,2009 - FINAL 	 PAGE 2 

RESOLUTION #2009-11-18 
Moved by Halsey 
Seconded by Schepke 

Recommend installation of ALL-WAY STOP signs at the intersection of Larchwood and Austin. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

4. 	 Install an Additional NO PARKING Sign on Anvil South of Forge 

Pete Ziegenfelder, Traffic Committee Chair, requests installation of an additional NO 
PARKING sign on Anvil south of Forge, to enable students to see better when they 
cross the street and to make it easier for school buses to turn onto Forge. See attached 
report. 

Officer Schultz requests that another NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING zone be 
established on Anvil north of Forge. The committee members and the residents attending 
all agreed. Ms. Binkowski wanted this item placed on the next agenda so the nearby 
residents can be notified of the meeting. 

RESOLUTION #2009-11-19 
Moved by Diefenbaker 
Seconded by Binkowski 

a. 	 Recommend establishment of an additional NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING 
zone on the west side of Anvil from Forge south to the driveway at 3668 Forge during the 
hours of 7:45 to 8:45 a.m. and 2:45 to 3:45 pm, school days only. 

YES: AII-5 
NO: None 
ABSENT: 2 (Hubbell, Kilmer) 
MOTION CARRIED 

11. 	 Public Comment 

No one wished to speak on matters not on the agenda. 

12. 	 Other Business 

Mr. Diefenbaker said that reflectors on the corners of the Blanch and Wright intersection 
were removed during the recent paving project in the area. He would like them replaced. 
He also stated that Pro-Line Asphalt did a great job with the paving project and restoration. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES - NOVEMBER 18, 2009 - FINAL PAGE 3 

Mr. Repen said reflectors are also needed on the corners of Forge and Anvil. 

Mr. Diefenbaker suggested that in order to save paper, backup materials for the minutes 
not be sent out to the members, as they have already received them with the agendas. 

Mr. Blackey asked that Mr. Huotari contact the Road Commission and have them check on 
the timillg of the traffic signal on John R at Niagara. 

13. Adiourn 

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 

Laurel Nottage, Record~ 9 Secretary 

Traffic Committee\2009 Minutes and AgendaslNovember 18lminutes.doc 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL November 30, 2009 
 
The additional meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, November 
30, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting 
to order at 7:35 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 

Roger Kaniarz 
  Vera Milz 
  Kevin Lindsey 
  Terry Navratil 

Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager      
 

 ABSENT Brian Wattles 
       Padma Kuppa 
 
GUESTS     Ward Randol- Troy Historical Society 
       John Lavender- Troy Historical Society 

         
Resolution #HC-2009-11-001 
Moved by Lindsey 
Seconded by Milz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 27, 2009 meeting be approved  
Yes: 5 , Kornacki, Kaniarz, Milz, Navratil and Lindsey  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Old Business 

A. Capital Projects 
Loraine is discussing with the city and the scouts the feasibility of having the Print 
Shop stripped and stained as an Eagle Scout project. 
          

B.  Programs  
Staff is currently working on public programs for February-April 2010 for the next 
Troy Today. Candy Cane Christmas is this Saturday. 
 

C. Attendance 
       See attached reports.  

 
D. Collections 
    See attached reports.  
 

E. Interpretive Master Plan (IMP) 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01h



2 

Julie Cutler of 106 Group will meet with staff and the IMP Team on December 1 
and 2 to discuss changes to the draft. 
 

F. Volunteer Orientation and Training 
Loraine is working with a small committee to restructure and formalize our 
volunteer program. The drafted materials will be presented to the Commission in 
early 2010. 
 

G. Fire Book 
500 copies of Fire Calls and Station Stories are now on sale in the Museum 
Gift Shop for $28 including tax. All proceeds will be directed to the Troy Heritage 
Campaign. 
 

H. Barnard Gift Agreement 
Allan Motzny and Tom Sawyer completed an amendment for the Barnard House 
Gift Agreement. The current schedule is to present this to city Council on 
December 7. 
 

I. City Organizational Structure 
City Council has approved the ballot language: 
Shall the City of Troy levy new additional millage of up to 1.9 mills against all 
taxable property for a five-year period of time, 2010 through 2014, for general 
operating purposes, including public safety and quality of life purposes?  1.9 mills 
are equal to $1.90 on each $1,000 of taxable value. If approved, the additional 
millage levied will raise approximately $9,129,000.00 the first year it is levied.   
 
The City Clerk will produce a content-neutral flyer that states the facts 
objectively. It will be distributed through the clerk’s office and provided to those 
voting by absentee ballot. 
 
A team appointed by John Szerlag has written the text for a 10 minute PSA. 
When the language is approved, the PSA will be produced by Community Affairs. 

 
New Business 

  
A. Troy Historical Society 

Troy Historical Society members will work with citizen efforts to support the 
proposed millage.  
 

B. Reports and Communications 
Staff 
No report. 

 
Commission Members 



3 

Commission members asked if it is appropriate or legal for the Commission to take 
a public stand on the millage question. Loraine was asked to contact the City 
Attorney. 
 
Roger Kaniarz asked when the old damaged stove will be removed from the Wagon 
Shop. Loraine will bring this to William Boardman’s attention. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m. The next regular 
meeting will be held Monday, January 26, 2010 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
at 7:30 pm. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL December 1, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
December 1, 2009. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, January 5, 2010 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Leslie Witt Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01i



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY   DECEMBER 8, 2009 
FINAL MEETING MINUTES                       
                                                         

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:01 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Council Boardroom by 
Bruce Wilberding.   
 
 
Members Present:   Victor Lenivov  

Donald Schenk 
Robert Swartz 
Joseph Vassallo (left @ 3:45 p.m.) 
Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 
 
Members Absent: Jim Campbell 

Art Cotsonika 
 
  
Also Present:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Mark F. Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
Patti Holland, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 2009-12-01 
Moved by Wilberding 
Seconded by Schenk 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of July 21, 2009 with the addition of 
Mr. Lenivov’s comments. 
 
Yeas:  All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Cotsonika 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None    
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. 2010 Meeting Schedule 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01j



RESOLVED, that the BRA approves the 2010 meeting schedule. 
 
Yeas:  All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Cotsonika 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
B. Mid Town Brownfield Plan #1 – Abolishment of Plan and Amendment of Local 

Site Remediation Revolving Loan Fund Policy 
 

1. Abolishment of Mid Town Brownfield Plan #1 
 

Resolution #BRA 2009-12-02 
 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Wilberding 
 
Yeas:  All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Cotsonika 
 
RESOLVED, that the TBRA recommends abolishment of Brownfield Plan #1, as 
amended (Grand/Sakwa / Midtown), as permitted by MCL125.2666 (2), since the 
purposes for which the plan were established have been accomplished, and forwards 
this resolution to the Troy City Council for its consideration and action. 
 
Yeas:   All (5) 
Absent: Campbell, Cotsonika 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

2. Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Loan Fund Policy 
 
The amendment was discussed and will be addressed at the January 19, 2010 
regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
 

   BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Mr. Lenivov asked for clarification of the 2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. 
 
Resolution #BRA 2009-12-03 
 
Moved by Lenivov 
Seconded by Schenk 
 



RESOLVED, that Mark Miller will provide clarification of the 2009 Comprehensive 
Financial Report as requested by Mr. Lenivov. 
 
Yeas:  All (4) 
Absent: Campbell, Cotsonika, Vassallo 
 
 
Changes will be made to the Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy by Mark 
Miller and Lori Bluhm, which will be part of the January, 2010 agenda.                                                                                                           
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 
 
 
The next meeting scheduled is January 19, 2010. 
 
 
 
Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 
 
Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
BRA Meeting Minutes   
07-21-09 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL December 10, 2009 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, December 10, 2009, in the 
Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.  

ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Phillip Kwik, Head, Technology Department, Troy Public Library  

Guest: Barry Hyland, Library Systems Specialist, Troy Public Library 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-12-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Kul Gauri and Paul Lee be excused from the meeting.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-12-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, November 12, 
2009, be approved, and with one amendment offered by Zembrzuski.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-12-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan  
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, December 10, 2009, meeting be approved as written. 
  
Yes: 4— Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—N. Wheeler asked about the location and schedule of the new drop boxes at 
the Library. P. Kwik explained how they would work. A. Zembrzuski shared an email that she received from a 
resident regarding the drop boxes.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—None 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01k



 2 

OLD BUSINESS 
A. Polaris Update—B. Hyland gave an update on the Library’s new software, Polaris. 
B. Library Advisory Meeting Date for January 2010 

 
Resolution #LB-2009-12-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski  
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the January 2010 meeting of the Library Advisory Board be held on Thursday, 
January 21, 2010.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—given by B. Duggan, was received and filed. 
C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report—a printed report was distributed. 
D. Gifts—none 
E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments—were discussed 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-12-05 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 4—Duggan, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M.  
 
The next meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, January 21, 2010, at 7 pm.  
 
 

 
     
 _____________________________________ 

Lynne Gregory 
Chairman 
 
 
Phillip Kwik 
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 1 of 5 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
December 14, 2009 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Andrew Kaltsounis 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Lauren Harden, student representative 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Kaltsounis 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-023  
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Kaltsounis at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of December 14, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 9, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-024 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the November 9, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01l



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 2 of 5 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. M&M Troy, Inc.; requests new SDM license to be located at 1634 John R, 

Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req #438202}  This applicant was 
originally denied by the Liquor Advisory Committee because the business 
did not have the minimum $250,000 in approved stock inventory.  The 
business is now in compliance with the City Ordinance and wishes to return 
to seek approval 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Majid Kesto. 
 
Mr. Kesto stated that he is now in compliance with the City Ordinance in that he 
has $250,000 of approved stock inventory.  All inspections by the Building and Fire 
Departments have been approved. 
 
Officer Feld confirmed that all inspections have been approved. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-025 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ehlert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
M&M Troy, Inc. for a new SDM licensed to be located at 1634 John R, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County, be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  Ukrainec 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
2. Kher Enterprises, Inc. requests transfer ownership of 2009 SDD & SDM 

from Troy Cheese and Wine Market, Inc. located at 2558 – 2560 East 
Maple Road, Troy, MI 48083 {MLCC Req. #522806}.  This is a new owner 
purchasing the business. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Labhu and Hansaben 
Kher. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 3 of 5 

 
Mr. Kher advised the Committee that he and his wife have purchased this 
business.  The previous owner has agreed to remain on site for training purposes 
as long as necessary.  All employees will be TIPS/TAMS trained.  The final 
electrical inspection has been requested but not yet conducted. 
 
Officer Feld stated that all Building Department inspections have passed with the 
exception of the electrical inspection.   
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-026 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 SDD & SDM license from 
Troy Cheese and Wine Market, Inc. located at 2558-2560 East Maple Road, Troy, 
MI 48083 be APPROVED contingent on the successful completion of employee 
training and approval of the Building Department electrical inspection. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
3. Simbad Inc. requests transfer ownership of 2006 Class C Licensed 

Business, located in Escrow at 29855 Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, 
Oakland County, From F & S Food Service, Inc.: David H. Fink, Receiver to 
Simbad, Inc.: Transfer Location (Governmental Unit) MCL 436.1531(1) to 
336 John R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and request a new Dance-
Entertainment Permit to be held in conjunction {MLCC Req. #528006}.   
Simbad seeks approval for a Class C License pending final inspections. 
(Simbad Inc. will then complete renovations including a new bar area prior 
to opening.  License will not be issued until passing final inspections of the 
business).  Simbad Inc. is leasing the space that originally was the Troy 
Manor located within the Oakland Plaza Shopping Area. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney John Hindo and 
business owners Sabah Garmo and Raad Shango.   
 
Mr. Hindo advised the Committee that his clients have signed a lease for this 
restaurant and plan to host small private parties.  The capacity of this 
establishment is 230 people.  Upon approval of the license transfer, the owners 
plan to do minor interior renovations, predominantly of a cosmetic nature.  All 
employees will receive TIPS/TAMS training. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 4 of 5 

 
Officer Feld stated that the Building Department inspections will be scheduled 
upon completion of the renovations. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-027 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg  
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request to 
transfer ownership of 2006 Class C licensed business located in escrow at 29855 
Northwestern, Southfield, MI 48034, Oakland, from F & S Food Service, Inc., 
David H. Fink, Receiver, to Simbad, Inc.; request to transfer location to 336 John 
R, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County; and request for a new Dance-Entertainment 
Permit to be held in conjunction be APPROVED contingent on the approval of all 
Building Department inspections. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
4. NKG Business, Inc. requests transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 SDD & 

SDM Licensed Business from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req#527498} – 
Former site of the Buscemi’s Party Store 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney John Hindo and 
business owner Nagi Abad.   
 
Mr. Hindo advised the Committee that his clients are re-opening the Buscemi’s 
Party Store.  They own another Buscemi’s location and have been in the party 
store business for over 12 years.  All employees will receive TIPS/TAMS training. 
 
Officer Feld stated that the Police Department has nothing to report. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-12-028 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
NKG Business, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 SDD & SDM Licensed 
Business from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County, be APPROVED. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            DECEMBER 14, 2009  

 Page 5 of 5 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Kaltsounis 
 
 
 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following information items: 
 
Numan Troy, Inc. 
There are problems with the necessary minimum inventory for Ordinance 
compliance. 
 
The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit 
This location will undergo major renovation after a Club License is obtained. 
 
Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
The owners wish to obtain a SDM license.  There may be opposition from 
residents in the area. 
 
E Mart, L.L.C. 
This is an oriental market at East Big Beaver and Dequindre. 
 
Ram’s Horn 
The owners are pursuing the transfer of a Class C license.  If successful, they will 
close the restaurant for renovation. 
 
Franco’s Restaurant 
There will be a transfer of ownership 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
                     Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL December 15, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
November 17, 2009 at the Troy Museum because there was no quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, January 19, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01m



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   DECEMBER 16, 2009 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on December 16, 2009 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Willa Adamo called the meeting to order at  
7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo 

Supriya Jalukar 
Kelly Niemiec 
Sumana Palle 
Vikram Prasad   
Shaina Sekhri 
Rajiv Vutukuru 
David Wylie  
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Disha Bora, Ananya Mukundan, Sevita Rama, Rachita 
Singh, Emily Wang   

VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2009-12-14 
 
 Moved by   Palle 

  Seconded by  Jalukar 
   
 RESOLVED, That the minutes of November 18, 2009 are approved. 

  Yes:  All – 8 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  5 – Bora, Mukundan, Rama, Singh, Wang   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, Adamo status for September 23 will be 
changed.  No additional comments.   

 
4.   City Council Restructuring Options   

Youth Council was updated on current status of the special millage election.  
Youth council members discussed issue and a resolution was put forward: 

Resolution # TY-2009-12-15 
 

 Moved by   Palle 
  Seconded by  Wylie 

   
RESOLVED, That the Troy Youth Council supports and will promote the passage of 
the special millage election scheduled for February 23, 2010. 

  Yes:  All – 8 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  5 – Bora, Mukundan, Rama, Singh, Wang  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01n



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   DECEMBER 16, 2009 
 

 2

5. Teens Taking Action  
Youth Voices event scheduled for Friday, February 5, 2010. 

 
6. Troy Daze 

No changes for 2010. 
   
 

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
 Resolution # TY-2009-12-16 

  Moved by  Sekhri   
  Seconded by  Prasad 

  
RESOLVED that Bora, Mukundan, Singh, Wang  are excused. 

  Yes:   8  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   5 -  Bora, Mukundan, Rama, Singh, Wang   
 
       
8. Public Comments – None  

 
9. Youth Council Comments  – None 

 
10. Adjournment  –    Meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Willa Adamo, chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: January 27 at 7:00 P.M.  



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL January 5, 
2010 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
January 5, 2010 at the Troy Museum. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, February 2, 2010 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Leslie Witt Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01o



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 6, 2010 

1 

 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:35 A.M. on Wednesday, January 6, 2010 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    John Szerlag, City Manager 
    Michael Pylar 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 2, 2009 
 
Motion by Pylar 
Supported by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 2, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 3 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MIKE TWYDELL, 735 JOHN R, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to install six (6) wall signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting 
in a total of 1,031 square feet of wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is 
permitted. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install six 
(6) wall signs each measuring 100 square feet in area.  This property is located in the B-
3 (General Business) Zoning District.  Chapter 85.02.05 (c) (4) of the Sign Ordinance 
allows any number of wall signs not to exceed 10% of the front area of the structure.  
Based on the size of this building, 442 square feet of wall signage is allowed.  Sign 
permits have already been issued for seven (7) wall signs totaling 431 square feet.  The 
petitioner is proposing to install an additional 600 square feet of wall signs resulting in a 
total of 1,031 square feet of wall signage. 
 
Michael Twydell of Twydell Signs and Katie Darr of Henry Ford OptimEyes were 
present.  Mr. Twydell stated that they are proposing to put up photographs on the 
building and would agree to any stipulation that would not allow verbiage or logos on 
these photographs.  This building has the appearance of an industrial building and they 
are looking to inform the public that this is a retail store.  People have had trouble 
identifying this site due to the lack of signage.  These proposed signs would be more 
aesthetically pleasing and lead to a more retail looking site.  Furthermore, there are a 
number of trees around this building that also reduce visibility. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01p



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 6, 2010 

2 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Darr stated that one side of this building is the professional side, which houses a 
number of doctors, including retina specialists and pediatric ophthalmologists and their 
customers range from infancy through seniors.  The other side of the building is the 
retail area and they sell glasses, as well as contacts.   
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he has lived in Troy on and off for seventeen years and had a 
hard time finding this building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that they would be perfectly happy with the stipulation that these 
signs would not change into electronic signs in the future. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to grant Mike Twydell, 735 John R. relief of Chapter 85 to install six (6) wall 
signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting in a total of 1,031 square feet of 
wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is permitted. 
 
Motion failed for lack of a Second. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that in the past this Board had heard a very similar request from a 
car wash and that request was denied.  Mr. Dziurman went on to say that this previous 
petitioner had put in windows and put his signage inside the windows.  Mr. Dziurman 
stated that in his opinion this is a very large variance request. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that these photographs would improve the look of this building and at 
this point it would be very difficult to add windows. 
 
Ms. Darr indicated that they could not add windows because the location of the exam 
rooms adjacent to these walls and the need to be able to control the lighting in the exam 
rooms. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he would not be surprised to see ABC Warehouse come to 
this Board with a similar request of this variance was granted. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that the site for ABC Warehouse is different in that it is visible to 
traffic on all four sides. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 6, 2010 

3 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that he had a hard time finding this building as the trees were blocking 
his view.  Mr. Pylar asked the petitioner how additional signage would alleviate that 
problem.  The trees will still grow larger and he does not see how the signage will help.   
Mr. Pylar also asked the petitioner if they could reduce the number of signs they are 
asking for as this request is for a very large variance. 
 
Ms. Darr stated that they are using these murals to help identify the building and she 
believes the different colors will help people notice this building. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the trees were in the right of way or on the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not sure, but that it was possible that the trees were 
required by the Zoning Ordinance in order for this site to meet the landscape 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Twydell said that he thought the trees were located on their property. 
 
A discussion began about the possibility of using other specimens of trees and/or 
landscaping to meet the landscape requirement. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the petitioner would agree to maintain the existing foliage and Mr. 
Twydell stated that they would. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that he has a problem with the amount of square footage the petitioner 
is asking for as it is more than double than what is allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that the photographs have to be that size in order to make an impact 
as they are spread over the building.  Mr. Twydell said that he did not believe they 
should be considered signage. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if any of the signs could be eliminated in order to reduce the size of 
this request. 
 
Ms. Darr said that this is a huge building and their idea was for these photographs to 
have the greatest impact to people driving by.  Ms. Darr said that they feel this is the 
appropriate amount of signage. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that they could put three signs across on the Chicago side of the 
building and put one sign on the south elevation. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if Mr. Dziurman would rather see four signs than six signs and Mr. 
Dziurman confirmed that he would. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                              JANUARY 6, 2010 

4 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to grant Mike Twydell, 735 John R. relief of Chapter 85 to install four (4) wall 
signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting in a total of 831 square feet of 
wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is permitted. 
 

 Additional signage not to exceed 400 square feet. 
 No verbiage or logos would be put on these murals. 
 Existing trees would be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board members that there are still two vacancies on this Board 
and City Council is in the process of reviewing applications.  The perspective applicants 
need to have some knowledge of building and construction.  Anyone interested in 
serving on this Board should contact either the City Clerk’s office for an application or 
Mr. Stimac.  The Board is required to have five members; therefore, in order to have a 
quorum at least three members must be present. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Jan. 7, 2010 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Jan. 7, 2010 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
P.M. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: Dorothy Pietron, Pauline Noce - excused 
 
Visitors:  None  
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-01-001 
Moved by Rhoads 
Seconded by Black 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 1, 2009 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 5  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
School District Finance Report:  Jim Berar led a discussion about the Troy School District’s 
recent finance report.   
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that here was a complaint about the Mental Health bingo on 
November 10 which Carla passed on in a letter to the executive director of the Oakland 
County Community Mental Health Authority, the agency that sponsored the program.  There 
was also a complaint about not having an escort on the Battle Creek Casino trip.  This trip was 
offered through a travel agent and we would have had to buy a trip for the escort, raising the 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01q



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Jan. 7, 2010 

2 

fee for the seniors.  The bus driver was also the escort for the trip but if this was not sufficient, 
we will have an escort in the future.    
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that over 1900 flu shots were given at the Community 
Center on October 15 – a record number.  196 people participated in document shredding on 
Oct. 21.    66 people received free leaf raking which is offered in partnership with Troy People 
Concerned.  There was a good turn-out for the diabetes prevention workshop in October with 
48 people attending.  Focus Hope food recipients received a gift at the December distribution 
courtesy of Home Instead, a senior homecare company.  We have a new grief support group 
called “Life After Loss.”   The Hearing Loss Support group’s silent auction was a success 
raising over $700 to provide funds for real-time captioning at those meetings.  The pickleball 
program continues to grow, with two tournaments offered over the holidays, and the next 
session of the Sunday evening league expanding by 50%.  The senior newsletter will be 
renamed “Fifty Forward.”    
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have considered charging a nominal fee. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 
 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
M-01r











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 12, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-01-001 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Mr. Ullmann asked that the December 8, 2009 Regular meeting minutes reflect the 
following revision: 
 

Page 3, third paragraph, after the sentence that reads, “Mr. Ullmann 
questioned the detention on site.” to add the sentence, “There was no 
detention shown.” 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01s



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

2 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-01-002 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 8, 2009 Regular Meeting as 
revised.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-01-003 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 15, 2009 Special Meeting as 
prepared.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
5. POTENTIAL REZONING APPLICATION – 2684 Industrial Row, North side of 

Industrial Row, East of Coolidge, Section 32, Presently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District, Proposed Zoning O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the proposed rezoning application. 
 
Messrs. Dave McDonald and Scott McBride were present.  They indicated an 
interest in acquiring 2684 Industrial Row and converting the building into an office 
for their insurance and financial management business. 
 
There was general discussion about the potential rezoning application. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to give favorable consideration to the 
proposed rezoning. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 12, 2010 
  
 
 

3 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

6. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Strat nominated Michael Hutson for Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Strat nominated Mark Maxwell for Vice Chair. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Representative. 
 
Mr. Sanzica nominated Donald Edmunds. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Representative closed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yes All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
Chair Schultz asked for nominations from the floor for Board of Zoning Appeals 
(BZA) Alternate. 
 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Philip Sanzica.  
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Schultz declared the nominations for the 
position of Board of Zoning Appeals Alternate closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL 	 JANUARY 12, 2010 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Yes All present (8) 

Absent: Vleck 


7. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Items on Current Agenda 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

There was general discussion on the following: 

• 	 Troy/Birmingham Transit Center. 
• 	 Preservation of trees on residential development applications. 
• 	 Enforcement of codes relating to land use, blight and nuisance, new 

responsibility of the Planning Department. 
• 	 A work plan summary for the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Rewrite is 

forthcoming. 
• 	 Section 28.30.09 of the Zoning Ordinance discussed in general terms by Mr. 

Savidant. There was general agreement to consider an amendment to this 
section, eliminating the requirement that warehouse facilities can have up to 
25% retail only if located on a major thoroughfare. 

• 	 Mr. Schultz was thanked by all for his outstanding job as Chair for the last three 
years. 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert M. Schultz, CJ;(air ~.. / / \, 

~' 

, Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Directo 

G;\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Finsl\01-12-10 Regular Meeting_FinaLdoc 

4 

http:28.30.09


TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   JANUARY 27, 2010  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on January 27, 2010 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Shaina Sekhri called the meeting to order at  
7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo 

Disha Bora 
Supriya Jalukar 
Ananya Mukundan 
Kelly Niemiec 
Vikram Prasad   
Sevita Rama 
Shaina Sekhri 
David Wylie  
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Sumana Palle, Rachita Singh, Rajiv Vutukuru, Emily Wang   
VISITORS: None 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2010-1-1 
 
 Moved by   Bora 

  Seconded by  Wylie 
   
 RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 16, 2009 are approved. 

  Yes:  All – 9 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  4 – Palle, Singh, Vutukuru, Wang   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council member.  No comments.   
 

4.   City Council Restructuring Options   
Youth Council was updated on current status of the special millage election.   

 
5. Teens Taking Action  

Youth Voices event scheduled for Friday, February 5, 2010.  Registration 
forms distributed to members 

 
6. Troy Daze 

No changes for 2010. 
   
 

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
 Resolution # TY-2010-1-2 

  Moved by  Wylie   
  Seconded by  Mukundan 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01t



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   JANUARY 27, 2010  
 

 2

  
RESOLVED that Palle, Singh, Vutukuru and Wang are excused. 

  Yes:   9  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   4 -  Palle, Singh, Vutukuru, Wang   
 
       
8. Public Comments – None  

 
9. Youth Council Comments  – None 

 
10. Adjournment  –    Meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Shaina Sekhri, chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: February 24 at 7:00 P.M.  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:33 A.M., on Wednesday, February 3, 2010, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    John Szerlag, City Manager 
    Michael Pylar – Oakland County Health Department 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 6, 2010 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 6, 2010 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 3  
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PHILLIPS SIGN & LIGHTING, 1850 W. MAPLE, for 
relief of Chapter 85 to remove two existing 17.5 square foot wall signs and to erect a new 
wall sign measuring 18.5 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to remove two 
existing 17.5 square foot “Pontiac” wall signs and replace them with a new “Buick” wall sign 
of 18.5 square feet.  Chapter 85.01.05 (c) (5) allows three (3) wall signs for each auto 
dealership in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District, one of which not to exceed 100 
square feet; the other two (2) not exceeding 20 square feet each.  A variance was granted 
in September 2009 to allow the current eight (8) wall signs with a combined area of 255.4 
square feet.  That variance included a stipulation that no other signs were to be erected to 
replace the Pontiac logo signs once they were removed. 
 
John Fowler and Jim Bechtel of Somerset GMC Buick and Ed Phillips of Phillips Sign & 
Lighting were present.  Mr. Phillips said that basically their hardship is identification.  They 
are a new Buick dealer and have been unable to advertise because of the sign limitations.  
This proposed sign will bring the number of signs down from eight to seven and will also 
reduce the square footage by 16.5 square feet. 
 
Mr. Dziurman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01u



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to grant Phillips Sign & Lighting, 1850 W. Maple relief of Chapter 85 to remove two 
existing 17.5 square foot wall signs and to erect a new wall sign measuring 18.5 square feet 
resulting in a total of seven signs with an area of 239 square feet. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JAY JOHNSON, JOHNSON SIGN COMPANY, 305 W. 
BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) wall signs each measuring 212 
square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect three (3) 
wall signs.  This property is zoned O-S-C Office Service Commercial.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) 
(3) of the Sign Ordinance allows one wall sign up to 10% of the front face of the building 
that will not exceed 200 square feet in area.  The petitioner is proposing three (3) wall signs 
each measuring 212 square feet for a total 636 square feet of signage. 
 
Mark Crawford, Peter Treboldi, Peter Prychodko and Bruce Knapp of Doeren Mayhew were 
present.  Jay Johnson of Johnson Sign Company was also present.  Mr. Johnson stated 
that the hardship is the fact that this building is located 550’ from I-75 and from Big Beaver 
and 1100’ from the Big Beaver exit ramp.  The wall letters will not overwhelm the building 
and Mr. Johnson does not believe it will cause “sign clutter”.  Mr. Johnson went on to say 
that numerous studies indicate that identification of a location is fundamental to the success 
of that business.  Mr. Johnson also stated that it has been proven that buildings with good 
visibility succeed by a rate well over 60%.  This variance would not be contrary to public 
interest and will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property.   
 
Mr. Johnson distributed a letter that he had received from Mr. James Crew, the Vice-
President of Columbia Center III, LLC indicating that they approved of this request and 
stated that improved signage would allow for a much stronger presence for this client. 
 
Mr. Peter Treboldi of Doeren Mayhew stated that he has been a resident of Troy for forty 
years and is very active in this community.  This firm has been located in the Top of Troy 
building since 1977 and plan to stay in Troy.  Mr. Treboldi said that one of the reasons they 
want to move their office to this building is for the opportunity for increased signage.  If this 
request is not approved, Doeren Mayhew will probably not move into this location and will 
look for a location that would allow more signage.  They plan to occupy about 50,000 
square feet of this building and are committed to taking good care of this building. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

3 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why the petitioner wanted signs on the east, south and north 
elevations. 
 
Mr. Bruce Knapp stated that the west elevation is somewhat visibly impaired by the Drury 
Inn and there are a number of trees that reduce visibility on the south elevation.  Mr. Knapp 
went on to say that they are trying to get as much visibility as possible to drivers on I-75. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were other tenants in the building that would request additional 
signage.  Mr. Knapp stated that there were two other tenants that have signage on the 
ground sign. 
 
Mr. Treboldi stated that the other tenants would not be putting up any other wall signs. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Pylar 
Supported by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to grant Jay Johnson, Johnson Sign Company, 305 W. Big Beaver, relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect three (3) wall signs each measuring 212 square feet. 
 

 Size of signs is not overwhelming. 
 Signs will increase visibility and identification to motorists. 
 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GARDNER SIGNS, 686-880 E. BIG BEAVER, for relief 
of Chapter 85 to relocate an existing 25’ tall, 198.25 square foot ground sign on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to relocate an 
existing 25’ tall, 198.25 square foot ground sign.  The property in question is in the B-2 
(Community Business) Zoning District.  Table 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires signs 
over 20’ in height and over 100 square feet in area to be setback at least 30’ from the front 
property line.  The petitioner is proposing to relocate the existing sign so that it is at the front 
property line along Big Beaver Road (zero foot setback). 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

4 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
  
Mr. Laith Hermiz of RVL Ramco, the owners of the property was present.  Mr. Hermiz 
distributed aerials of the property indicating the location of the out lot building, the location 
of the present sign and the proposed location of the new sign.  The out lot was purchased in 
2008 and at that time they wanted to put up a 5,000 square foot retail building.  They went 
before the Planning Commission and based on the Big Beaver Corridor Study, moved the 
building back about 35’ from the property line.  This new building partially blocks the view of 
the existing sign. 
 
Mr. Hermiz also brought in drawings depicting the line of vision when traveling east in the 
right lane of Big Beaver and also when traveling east in the left lane of Big Beaver.  Mr. 
Hermiz said that they complied with the Big Beaver corridor study and the sign existed 
before they developed the out lot.  Mr. Hermiz also expressed concern about the safety 
issue regarding this sign due to the obstructed visibility.  Often people entering the site have 
to make a very sharp right turn.  Moving the sign closer to Big Beaver will increase visibility 
and will help traffic safety with increased visibility. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he did not have a problem locating this site when driving on Big 
Beaver because he can see the wall signs.  Mr. Hermiz stated that there is a small corridor 
where you can see the businesses on the site, but he does not believe it is until you get 
past the out lot and then people have to make a very quick turn. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated he would like to see that if this sign is allowed to be placed on the 
property line, and if in the future the City purchases some of that property for any reason, 
the sign would have to be relocated at the owner’s expense.  Mr. Hermiz said that he would 
agree to that. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mike Constantine, attorney representing Pet Smart, which is a tenant on this site, stated 
that he does not have any objection to this request as long as it did not affect the size of the 
sign. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Pylar asked what the distance was between the proposed location of the sign and the 
existing stop sign.  Mr. Brian Blizzard of RVL Ramco stated that it was about 3’.  Mr. Pylar 
asked if they had thought of moving the sign farther east. 
 
Mr. Hermiz stated that he had absolutely no objection to moving this sign, but was 
concerned that revisions to the detention pond may need site plan approval.    Mr. Hermiz 
also stated that the proposed location of the sign would be to the right of the stop sign and 
would not impair visibility. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that he was concerned that the stop sign would be too close to the 
proposed sign. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if other signs of this size had received variances to be located at a 0’ 
setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that signs are allowed to be placed at a 0’ setback, but they are not this 
large.   
 
A discussion began regarding the location of the building on the out lot.  Mr. Stimac stated 
that neither the Zoning Ordinance or the Sign Ordinance have been changed to address the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner would come back and ask for an increase in the square 
footage of the sign. 
 
Mr. Hermiz stated that at this time they have no intention of increasing the square footage 
on the sign.  Mr. Hermiz also stated that because the foundation of this sign was brick, they 
would have to take the existing base down and re-construct it in the new location. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if there were any utilities located in the proposed location.  Mr. Evans 
stated that the Sign Ordinance prohibits putting a sign in a utility easement. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to grant Gardner Signs, 686-880 E. Big Beaver, relief of Chapter 85 to relocate an 
existing 25’ tall, 198.25 square foot ground sign. 
 

 Sign will be located at the front property line along Big Beaver (zero foot setback). 
 If the City were to purchase any of this property, the cost of re-location of this sign 

will be borne by the property owner. 
 Sign should be moved as far east as possible without disturbing the retention pond. 

 
Mr. Stimac said that it would be difficult to enforce this variance without using a specific 
number of feet from the stop sign. 
 
Mr. Pylar said that he was also concerned about the sidewalk in this area and was worried 
that the sign would be too close to the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the sidewalk is probably located about one foot from the property line 
and therefore would be one foot from the sign. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to amend original motion to grant Gardner Signs, 686-880 E. Big Beaver, relief of 
Chapter 85 to relocate an existing 25’ tall, 198.25 square foot ground sign at the front 
property line along Big Beaver. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 3, 2010 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

 Sign will be located at the front property line along Big Beaver (zero foot setback). 
 If the City were to purchase any of this property, the cost of re-location of this sign 

will be borne by the property owner. 
 Sign should be moved as far east as possible without disturbing the retention pond. 
 Location of sign with relation to the stop sign is to be approved by the City Traffic 

Engineer. 
 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO AMEND CARRIED 
 
Vote on motion to approve as amended. 
 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board members that at the City Council meeting of February 1, 
2010 Mr. Michael Carolan was nominated to serve as a member of this Board.  The vote to 
approve this nomination will take place at the City Council meeting of February 15th. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that Mr. Carolan is a licensed builder and also works as a Real 
Estate agent and has been a Troy resident for 30 + years. 
 
The Board discussed the restrictions of temporary signage for businesses along Rochester 
Road once the road widening project begins. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:16 A.M. 
 
 
 
        
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                               Feb. 4, 2010 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Feb. 4, 2010 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
P.M. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: None 
 
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
David Ogg reported that Dorothy Pietron has resigned her position on the Advisory 
Committee.  Carla informed the committee of City Council’s direction to refrain from placing 
non-statutory or Charter mandated board and committee nominations on City Council agendas 
until they have had an opportunity to discuss purpose, function and impact on staff for all 
boards and committees - unless the board or committee cannot meet quorum with the current 
members.  Therefore, there will be no appointments to the three open positions until their 
discussion is completed. 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-02-001 
Moved by Berar 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Feb. 4, 2010 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 6  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed school district news. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01v



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                               Feb. 4, 2010 

2 

Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that here was one unsigned suggestion that pensions 
should be frozen for non-represented employees to reduce City costs. 
 
Golf Course:  Carla reported that three proposals were reviewed last week and the 
information has been passed on to City Council for review.  The contract would be for eight 
years, and greens fees a contractor would charge have not been discussed as of yet.  
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  JoAnn reported that a public hearing will be held on Thursday, February 18 at 7 
p.m. at the Community Center to get public input about names for the new park at Maple and 
MIlverton.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 32 people are signed up for a new fitness class called 
Fitness Fusion.  We are offering three senior fitness classes in the after work time slot rather 
than during the day, and it seems to be a popular time.  The evening Zumba Gold class is also 
well attended.  Tax aide is gearing up to start this Friday and all the appointments are taken 
for the first two weeks.  The computer lab steering committee has been nominated for the 
MRPA Community Service award which they will receive in March.  The volunteers have 
stepped up and taken over many additional responsibilities to help with the budget situation.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they were worried that Beaumont might cut their funding to 
Medi-Go, but they did not cut funding this year. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 
 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 8, 2010  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
February 8, 2010 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
     
 ABSENT:  Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Laurent Harden, student representative 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Payne and Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2010-02-006 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Payne and Ukrainec at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of February 8, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of January 11, 2010 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-02-007 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the January 11, 2010 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01w



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 8, 2010  

 Page 2 of 4 

Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Manzo-Helton, LLC requests to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C 

Licensed Business located at 3614 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County, from GBD, Inc. and request new Official Permit (Food) & 
SDM License to be held in conjunction {MLCC #533046}.   
 

Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Kelly Allen, Joyce 
Helton, and Matthew Manzo.   
 
Ms. Allen advised the Committee that Ms. Helton and Mr. Manzo entered into a 
management agreement with the former owners of Franco’s Restaurant in 
November 2009.  The former owner will remain as the executive chef.  Ms. Helton 
and Mr. Manzo have experience in the marketing and financial aspects of the 
restaurant business.  A general manager and two wait staff have been hired and 
TIPS training has been scheduled.  Interior renovations have been completed and 
the final inspections have been requested.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that Franco’s Restaurant received sale to 
minor violations in 1995, 1998, 2004, and 2008.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-02-008 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Manzo-Helton, LLC, to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C Licensed Business 
located at 3614 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, from GBD, Inc. 
and request new Official Permit (Food) & SDM License to be held in conjunction 
be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 8, 2010  

 Page 3 of 4 

 
 
 
2. Smoker’s Express, LLC requests a New SDM License, to be located at 

2981 East Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County. {MLCC Req. 
#524881}.   

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Joseph Harris.   
 
Mr. Harris advised the Committee that he purchased the business, which offers a 
walk-in humidor and lottery ticket sales, approximately two years ago.  After the 
CVS Pharmacy vacated that shopping center, he has been approached by 
customers requesting that he sell beer and wine.  Mr. Harris is a retired officer 
from the Detroit Police Department and understands the consequences of sales of 
tobacco and liquor to minors.  He currently has two employees, plans to hire one 
more, and everyone will be trained.  Additional “reach-in” coolers will be purchased 
for the business.  Building and Fire Department approvals have been obtained.   
 
Committee members asked Officer Feld if there is an inventory minimum for SDM 
licensed businesses.  Officer Feld will research the matter.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that the MLCC will review Mr. Harris’ 
probation status for misdemeanor domestic assault prior to giving their approval 
for the SDM license. 
 
Resolution #LC2010-02-009 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Smoker’s Express, LLC for a New SDM License, to be located at 2981 East Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Payne, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             FEBRUARY 8, 2010  

 Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational item: 
 
Numan Troy, Inc. 
The ownership is uncertain if they plan to pursue the SDM License. 
 
Fine Wine Distributors, Inc. 
Officer Feld will determine if this establishment has closed its business. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC 
This item does not require Committee action or City Council approval. 
 
Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
They are currently working on their inventory. 
 
RCSH Operations, LLC 
This item does not require Committee action or City Council approval. 
 
E Mart, LLC 
This is the former location of CVS Pharmacy at Dequindre and Big Beaver Roads.  
Major renovations are planned. 
 
San Marino Club, Inc. 
This item may appear on the Agenda for the March meeting. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



 

 
 
February 3, 2010 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: 2009 Year End Calls for Police Service Report 
 
 
Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing current year calls 
for service with calls for police service from the previous year. In addition, at the end of the year 
the department provides a 10-year history of criminal occurrences.  The report’s format 
complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS).  All offenses within an 
incident are reported.  
 
# 2009 Group A Crime decreased 2.6% (89 incidents) from the 2008 level.  Within the group, 

the following categories show notable variations: 
 Breaking and Entering: Down 24.7% (76 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 15.2% (55 incidents) 
 Embezzlement: Down 41.9% (36 incidents) 
 Larceny/Theft Offenses:  Increased 12.9% (179 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Down 48.8% (79 incidents) 
 Weapon Law Violations: Increased 77.8% (7 incidents) 

 
# 2009 Group B Crime increased 1.8% (20 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2008 

occurred in the following:  
 Liquor Law Violations:  Decreased 46.3% (38 incidents) 

 
# Total incidents of crime (Groups A & B combined) decreased by 1.5% (69 incidents).   

 
# Clearance rates, the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 

positively identified but not prosecuted, continue to be high: 
 33.8% of reported Group A Crime  
 82.8% of reported Group B Crime 
 47.4% of all reported crime has been cleared   

 
# Total Arrests decreased 0.8% (21 arrests)  
 Group A Crime Arrests:  Increased 1.7% (20 arrests) 
 Group B Crime Arrests:  Increased 5.0% (49 arrests)  
 Group C Arrests (all other arrests):  Decreased 18.1% (90 arrests)   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02a



GGM/ppb  o:\administrative staff\1 paula administration\council items\02 15 10 agenda\2009 year end crime stats cc report.doc 

 
# Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service decreased by 8.7% (2,932 incidents).  

Notable variations within Group C include the following: 
 Alarms decreased 13.1% (478 alarms) 

 
# Total crimes and non-criminal calls for police service decreased 8.0% (3,053 crimes/calls for 

police service): 
 87.4% of all 2009 calls for police service were non-criminal in nature 
 Traffic crashes comprises 9.8% of the 2009 calls for service total 
 Response to alarms made up 9.0% of the 2009 call total 
 Larceny/Theft is the most frequently occurring crime in the City of Troy constituting 4.4% 

of the calls for service total and 35.2% of all criminal offenses in 2009.    
 

# Total traffic citations issued increased 1.6% (201 citations):  
 Hazardous traffic citations issued decreased 5.4% (494 citations) 
 Non-hazardous citations increased 96.5% (602 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations increased 2.5% (60 citations)     
 Parking citations increased 7.0% (33 citations) 

 
# The Ten Year Calls for Police Service report is also formatted in the NIBRS format.   

 
# Group A Crime is at its lowest level of the last ten years, down 22.4% or 953 crimes since 

2000 
 Motor Vehicle Theft offenses are at their lowest rate of occurrence in the last ten years 

and have decreased 37.1% (49 incidents) from the 2000 level 
 Larceny/Theft offenses have decreased 13.9% (253 incidents) from the 2000 level 
 Other categories, while showing small annual increases and decreases over the ten year 

period, have remained relatively the same 
 

# Group B Crime occurrences (non-serious crime) is also at a 10 year low down 1,931 crimes 
or 62.6% 
 

# Total calls for police service reflect a 10 year low and are down 22.1% or 10,019 calls from 
2000 levels. 

 
 
 



Troy Police Department

Annual 2009/2008 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent
Group A Crime Categories 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 Percent
Arson 3 5 -40.0% 3 6 -50.0% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Assault Offenses 603 573 5.2% 712 708 0.6% 147 138 6.5% 190 26.7%
Bribery 0 1         - 1 2 -50.0% 0 0        NC 1 100.0%
Breaking and Entering 232 308 -24.7% 237 309 -23.3% 31 26 19.2% 21 8.9%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 26 47 -44.7% 27 42 -35.7% 9 9        NC 7 25.9%
Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 306 361 -15.2% 333 386 -13.7% 10 16 -37.5% 19 5.7%
Drug/Narcotic Offenses 186 205 -9.3% 317 315 0.6% 217 239 -9.2% 299 94.3%
Embezzlement 50 86 -41.9% 53 88 -39.8% 39 62 -37.1% 32 60.4%
Extortion/Blackmail 0 1         - 0 2         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Fraud Offenses 167 183 -8.7% 180 197 -8.6% 31 52 -40.4% 34 18.9%
Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 2         - 0 0.0%
Homicide Offenses 0 1         - 0 2         - 0 2         - 0 0.0%
Kidnapping/Abduction 2 0         + 5 0         + 0 0        NC 1 0.0%
Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,566 1,387 12.9% 1,604 1,432 12.0% 684 581 17.7% 575 35.8%
Motor Vehicle Theft 83 162 -48.8% 87 173 -49.7% 6 12 -50.0% 7 8.0%
Pornography/Obscene Material 1 1        NC 1 1        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Prostitution Offenses 5 5        NC 6 5 20.0% 5 6 -16.7% 5 83.3%
Robbery 14 15 -6.7% 14 15 -6.7% 6 10 -40.0% 6 42.9%
Sex Offenses, Forcible 33 29 13.8% 34 29 17.2% 2 10 -80.0% 8 23.5%
Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Stolen Property Offenses 9 12 -25.0% 19 24 -20.8% 12 15 -20.0% 15 78.9%
Weapon Law Violations 16 9 77.8% 19 17 11.8% 9 8 12.5% 14 73.7%

Group A Total 3,302 3,391 -2.6% 3,652 3,753 -2.7% 1,208 1,188 1.7% 1,234 33.8%

Group B Crime Categories
Bad Checks 54 48 12.5% 56 50 12.0% 20 23 -13.0% 19 33.9%
Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 2 0 + 3 0 + 0 0 NC 0 0 0%

AnnualAnnual Annual Annual

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 2 0         + 3 0        + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Disorderly Conduct 87 107 -18.7% 110 119 -7.6% 11 29 -62.1% 24 21.8%
Driving Under the Influence 377 377        NC 442 451 -2.0% 383 385 -0.5% 437 98.9%
Drunkenness 1 1        NC 2 1 100.0% 0 2         - 0 0.0%
Family Offenses, Nonviolent 13 22 -40.9% 13 22 -40.9% 1 0         + 0 0.0%
Liquor Law Violations 44 82 -46.3% 101 145 -30.3% 112 125 -10.4% 99 98.0%
Peeping Tom 1 1        NC 1 1        NC 0 1         - 0 0.0%
Runaway (Under 18) 12 16 -25.0% 12 17 -29.4% 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Trespass of Real Property 17 15 13.3% 18 20 -10.0% 5 12 -58.3% 6 33.3%
All Other 545 464 17.5% 648 576 12.5% 497 403 23.3% 579 89.4%

Group B Total 1,153 1,133 1.8% 1,406 1,402 0.3% 1,029 980 5.0% 1,164 82.8%

Group A and B Total 4,455 4,524 -1.5% 5,058 5,155 -1.9% 2,237 2,168 3.2% 2,398 47.4%
Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.



Troy Police Department
Annual 2009/2008 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES
Percent Percent Percent

Description 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change 2009 Percent
Alarms 3,179 3,657 -13.1% 3,179 3,657 -13.1% NA NA NA NA NA
All Other 27,611 30,065 -8.2% 27,974 30,448 -8.1% 408 498 -18.1% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 30,790 33,722 -8.7% 31,153 34,105 -8.7% 408 498 -18.1% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 101 153 -34.0% 101 153 -34.0% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 35,346 38,399 -8.0% 36,312 39,413 -7.9% 2,645 2,666 -0.8% 2,398 47.4%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2009 Alcohol Involved Crashes 2008 Alcohol Involved Crashes

Personal Injury 477 581 -17.9% 15 Incidents-3.1% involved alcohol 17 Incidents-2.9% involved alcohol
Property Damage 2,192 2,534 -13.5% 26 Incidents-1.2% involved alcohol 30 Incidents-1.2% involved alcohol

Fatal 3 7 -57.1% 0 Incidents-0.0% involved alcohol 0 Incidents-0.0% involved alcohol
Total Reportable 2,672 3,122 -14.4% 41 Incidents-1.5% involved alcohol 37 Incidents-1.2% involved alcohol

Private Property Crashes 800 948 -15.6%

Crashes Grand Total 3,472 4,070 -14.7%

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 8,633 9,127 -5.4%

Non-hazardous 1,226 624 96.5%
License, Title, Registration 2,438 2,378 2.5%

P ki 503 470 7 0%

Annual Annual Annual Annual

Parking 503 470 7.0%
Traffic Citations Total 12,800 12,599 1.6%



Group A Crime Categories 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Arson 6 19 10 5 3 3 7 4 5 3

Assault Offenses 692 657 614 617 691 625 643 615 573 603

Bribery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Breaking and Entering 348 314 344 292 239 276 313 277 308 232

Counterfeiting/Forgery 51 69 99 109 113 107 71 37 42 26

Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 638 505 482 558 443 364 437 378 361 306

Drug/Narcotic Offenses 164 155 127 106 174 159 198 214 205 186

Embezzlement 113 115 100 82 91 79 83 80 86 50

Extortion/Blackmail 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 0

Fraud Offenses 202 201 192 167 163 110 177 204 190 167

Gambling Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Homicide Offenses 2 0 2 1 0 1 2 1 1 0

Kidnapping/Abduction 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2

Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,819 1,712 1,507 1,563 1,564 1,572 1,536 1,451 1,387 1,566

Motor Vehicle Theft 132 201 120 158 112 127 143 166 162 83

Pornography/Obscene Material 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 0 1 1

Prostitution Offenses 1 1 1 1 10 1 5 1 5 5

Robbery 19 18 21 27 20 19 26 20 15 14

Sex Offenses, Forcible 25 18 27 35 30 25 25 30 29 33

Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stolen Property Offenses 20 6 8 11 14 7 18 13 12 9

Weapon Law Violations 19 23 12 10 14 12 14 13 9 16

Group A Total 4,255 4,016 3,670 3,744 3,683 3,489 3,700 3,506 3,393 3,302

Group B Crime Categories
Bad Checks 77 55 15 17 11 5 30 43 48 54

Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 8 6 1 1 0 0 1 0 2

Disorderly Conduct 492 527 431 386 256 243 250 192 107 87

Driving Under the Influence 470 476 455 322 447 446 366 471 377 377

Drunkenness 1 1 4 4 3 23 5 1 1 1

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 24 17 15 10 24 14 17 17 22 13

Liquor Law Violations 101 86 70 60 71 74 89 101 82 44

Peeping Tom 1 0 4 1 3 2 7 2 1 1

Runaway (Under 18) 57 32 31 24 38 28 14 20 16 12

Trespass of Real Property 12 9 31 13 10 22 21 8 15 17

All Other 1,849 1,792 1,572 1,542 1,348 1,260 964 662 464 545

Group B Total 3,084 3,003 2,634 2,380 2,212 2,117 1,763 1,518 1,133 1,153

Group A and B Total 7,339 7,019 6,304 6,124 5,895 5,606 5,463 5,024 4,526 4,455

Data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

Group C Miscellaneous Total 37,868 35,796 33,325 32,385 32,871 34,464 33,513 35,422 33,722 30,790

Group E Fire Total 158 140 69 77 58 64 27 99 153 101

Grand Totals 45,365 42,955 39,698 38,586 38,824 40,134 39,003 40,545 38,401 35,346

Reportable Traffic Crashes
Personal Injury 940 882 753 722 716 656 551 615 581 477

Property Damage 3,247 2,737 2,474 2,700 2,638 2,824 2,494 2,704 2,534 2,192

Fatal 8 9 7 2 10 6 4 5 7 3

Total Reportable 4,195 3,628 3,234 3,424 3,364 3,486 3,049 3,324 3,122 2,672

Private Property Crashes 1,440 1,345 1,317 1,137 1,133 1,130 1,032 1,012 948 800

Crashes Grand Total 5,635 4,973 4,551 4,561 4,497 4,616 4,081 4,336 4,070 3,472

National Incident Based Reporting System
10 Year Incident Trend



DATE:           February 1, 2010 

TO:              John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:        Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager Economic Development Services
                    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of January 2010

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $151,000.00 $1,645.00

Sub Total 2 $151,000.00 $1,645.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 1 $550,000.00 $5,615.00
Add/Alter 12 $1,458,000.00 $15,930.00

Sub Total 13 $2,008,000.00 $21,545.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 2 $286,216.00 $3,110.00
Add/Alter 10 $138,850.00 $2,360.00
Repair 2 $35,395.00 $590.00
Fire Repair 3 $272,406.00 $3,085.00

Sub Total 17 $732,867.00 $9,145.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $27,225.00 $395.00

Sub Total 1 $27,225.00 $395.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 16 $0.00 $1,736.50

Sub Total 16 $0.00 $1,736.50

TOTAL 49 $2,919,092.00 $34,466.50

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
M-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2010
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 103 $2,060.00
Cert. of Occupancy 19 $1,096.00
Plan Review 50 $3,136.00
Microfilm 17 $231.00
Building Permits 49 $34,466.50
Electrical Permits 129 $6,151.00
Mechanical Permits 107 $5,500.00
Plumbing Permits 66 $3,494.00
Storm Sewer Permits 2 $30.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 8 $282.00
Sewer Taps 10 $3,490.00

TOTAL 560 $59,936.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2010
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 31 $155.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 40 $600.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 10 $50.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 1 $10.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 4 $60.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 7 $70.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 8 $120.00

TOTAL 101 $1,065.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2009 2009 2010 2010

JANUARY 66 $5,215,813.00 49 $2,919,092.00

FEBRUARY 39 $2,463,134.00 0 $0.00

MARCH 76 $3,344,007.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 95 $3,005,226.00 0 $0.00

MAY 122 $1,679,112.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 148 $2,708,849.00 0 $0.00

JULY 106 $4,158,316.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 117 $3,212,653.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 113 $3,557,220.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 110 $6,598,673.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 88 $6,096,477.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 80 $3,346,191.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1160 $45,385,671.00 49 $2,919,092.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

2
0

10

20

30

40

50

60
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2010

2
0

10

20

30

40

50

60
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st

S
ep

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2010



Feb 1, 2010 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2010Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter OSPREY CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPME 300 E BIG BEAVER 400  110,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP INC 900 TOWER  200  115,000
Commercial, Add/Alter HIRSCH CONSTRUCTION CORP 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-153  247,800
Commercial, Add/Alter BEDZYK BROTHERS, INC 1441 W LONG LAKE 200  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter NEW GROUND 255 E MAPLE  325,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SAJO INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER U-217  130,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,177,800

Commercial, Foundation New SELLMAN, ROBERT 85 E BIG BEAVER  550,000

Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  550,000

Industrial, Add/Alter COOKE, MARC 950 W MAPLE C  150,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  150,000

Total Valuation:  1,877,800Records  9



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of February 2010

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 2/5/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
January, February, & March 2010

123.72$            
Maureen McGinnis 2/5/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 137.85$           

January, February, & March 2010

137.85$            
Wade Fleming 2/5/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

January, February, & March 2010

215.70$            
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

0.00
Kerwin, Mary 2/5/2010 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           

January, February, & March 2010

212.85$            
Schilling, Louise E. 2/5/2010 Quarterly DSL Line 117.90$           

January, February, & March 2010

117.90$            
Dane Slater 2/5/2010 -$                 

-$                  

Total for Month 808.02$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 2/5/2010
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
M-02c



campbellld
Text Box
M-03a



WAlSH® 

COLLEGE 
OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT 

February 2, 2010 

Ms. Carol K. Anderson 
Parks and Recreation Director 
City of Troy 
3179 Livernois Rd. 
Troy, MI 4 083 

De 

PHONE (248) 689-8282 

FAX (248) 689-8330 

3838 LIVERNOIS ROAD 

P.O. BOX 7006 

TROY, M I 48007-7006 

Thank you for allowing Walsh College to borrow traffic cones for use at our 
commencement ceremony on January 30. They are always useful in designating 
parking spaces for our special guests and saved the College considerable expense 
in purchasing or renting these items. Once again, Jeff Biegler was extremely 
helpful in arranging delivery and pick-up of the cones. Please convey my 
appreciation to him and his staff. 

Again, thank you for your consideration. Your recurring support of this event is 
deeply appreciated. IfWalsh College can be of assistance to you in any way, please 
don't hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

S ephanie W. Bergeron 
President 

campbellld
Text Box
M-03b



campbellld
Text Box
M-03c



campbellld
Text Box
M-03d



campbellld
Text Box
M-03e



campbellld
Text Box
M-04a





Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
November 19, 2009 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, Robin Lilly, George Zielinski, Daniella Youhan, Dane Lepola, 
Ann Comiskey, Jeanne Stine, John Hug, Wendy Underwood, Mike Kerr, Dale Zygnowicz, Karen Wonsowicz. 
 
Call to order: Leonette called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
                         
Minutes:  Robin B moved to approve the minutes of October 15, 2009. Ann seconded, so moved.  
 
Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  
 

 George presented October Treasurers Report. Nancy moved to approve report as presented. Jeanne seconded; 
so moved. 
 

Communications:  
 Karen presented a donation from a friend.  

 
Caseworker’s Report:  
             
 We had six referrals; 3 from parent, 1 school, 1 Troy PD, and 1 from CPS. 
 Met with School Social Workers; Wendy Talan has agreed to sit on the Board.  

 
Executive Committee Report: 

 Leonette passed a letter in response to the Summit II it has been suggested to send a similar letter to 
commissioners and judges.  
 

Committee Reports: 
 A.   Camp/Skill Building: Brian Goul:  

 Karen brought up concerns on how to accept Skill Bld. Applications. Will revise application.  
 B.   Family Education:  

 Dr. Guy presentation on November 12 was well received.  
 C. Fundraising- Vacant: 
 
 D. Mentors Plus-Bruce Baxter: 

 No report 
 

E. Membership- Nancy Piotrowski:  
 Nancy reports she attended a conference she came away with many ideas of direction to take TYA. TYA has 

qualified for a monitory donation from the NPN-Network.    
   
 F. Publicity: 

 No report 
 

 G. Youth Involvement-  
 Leonette reports a couple kids from Athens came in to help pack up the Halloween candy. Mike will be 

sending to the troops. There were five schools who participated this year. Leonette will be checking with a 
school Secretary to take over task.  

 Leonette reported her and Karen are working on a Christmas party for about 30 kids, would like to get gifts. It 
will be held on December 17. 3:30-6:00 pm. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
M-05



 
   H.  Youth Recognition-Committee 

 Youth Rec. 2010 date April 21 at Athens High School. Nomination packets are ready to go out first of the 
year. 
 

School Reports:  
 Wendy reports- 6.5 mill revenue cut’s needed to re work budget. Parent survey circulation. Board of Education 

brought in diversity person.  
 Daniella reports- Troy Athens blood drive brought in 81-92 pints. Will be holding a can food drive and 

clothing drive.  
 Dane reports that Troy High also will be holding a blood drive this week. Winter ball is December 4, Parent 

teacher conferences is coming up. 
 

Old Business:  
 No report 

 
Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 

 John Hug reports events coming up; New Year extravaganza 5:15-9:15 on New Year’s Eve. Ultimate Jr. Life 
guard classes coming up. Child weight program January $250 for 7 weeks. 

 Ann reports the Troy Community Coalition Celebrity Night Dinner was a little down from the past but still 
went well. There are Meadowbrook tickets available for Thanksgiving. Have sent out a survey for athletics. 
Will be hosting our Volunteer dinner. 

 Mike Kerr thanked Leonette and her volunteers for their work on candy and post cards to the soldiers.  
 Robin B reports Christmas Tree Lighting is December 2, 2009. Hoping to get a millage approved. 
 October 8th will be the last date to register to vote. 

 
Adjourned:  7:10 p.m. 
 
 

Next meeting will be January 21, 2010 @ 6 p.m. 
     
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Robin Lilly, Secretary    
 
Final copy 
 
 
                                      


	AGENDA: February 15, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation in Recognition of National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 15-22, 2010 Presented to Ann Comiskey by Mayor Louise Schilling
	Proclamation in Recognition of League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – February 14, 2010 and February as League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month Presented to Pam Brady by Mayor Louise Schilling
	Presentation of the Michigan Recreation and Park Association Fellowship Award to Carol Anderson
	Presentation of Troy Public Library 2009 Hennen’s American Public Library Ratings by Library Director Cathleen Russ


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled
	City Council Appointment: Building Code Board of Appeals

	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals

	H-3 Bid Waiver:  Police Department Computer Room Environmental Controls
	H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval – Hidden Parc Site Condominium, South of Long Lake Road, West Side of John R Road, Section 14 – R-1C
	H-5 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2006-2011
	H-6 Amendment of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund Policy (LSRRF) and Authorization to Return 80% of the Money in the LSRRF to Taxing Jurisdictions

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	National Children of Alcoholics Week – February 15-22, 2010
	League of Women Voters 90th Anniversary – February 14, 2010 and February as League of Women Voters Making Democracy Work Month

	I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Printing/Distribution of Water and Sewer Bills

	I-5 Request of Marriott International, Inc. to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, LLC as Co-License and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. as Co-License in 2009 B-Hotel and SDM Licensed Business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars,...
	I-6 City of Troy v. MNAD Property, LLC
	I-7 City of Troy v. Picano Land Limited Partnership
	I-8 City of Troy v. Rochester Square Associates
	I-9 Acceptance of the 2009 Assistance to Firefighters Grant
	I-10 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 20, 2010

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) Michigan Next Energy Exemptions – March 1, 2010

	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 27, 2009
	Historic District Commission/Final – September 15, 2009
	Historic District Commission/Final – October 20, 2009
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 3, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Final – November 12, 2009
	Historic District Commission/Final – November 17, 2009
	Traffic Committee/Final – November 18, 2009
	Historic Commission/Final – November 30, 2009
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 1, 2009
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 8, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Final – December 10, 2009
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 14, 2009
	Historic District Commission/Final – December 15, 2009
	Youth Council/Final – December 16, 2009
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2010
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – January 6, 2010
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 7, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee/ Final – January 11, 2010
	Planning Commission/Final – January 12, 2010
	Youth Council/Draft – January 27, 2010
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 3, 2010
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 4, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 8, 2010

	M-2 Department Reports:
	Police Department – 2009 Year End Calls for Police Service Report
	Building Department – Permits Issued during the Month of January 2010
	Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for February 2010

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to City Manager John Szerlag from Michael Bolger Recognizing the Excellent Service the Building Department has provided to Synergy Group
	Letter of Thanks to Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson from Walsh College Presidency Stephanie Bergeron Regarding the Use of Traffic Cones
	Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Keith and Gail Dressell Regarding the Assistance Received from Officer Villerot and PSA Vaillancourt
	Letter from Steve Madden Commending the Professionalism and Kindness of Officer Shuler
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Nelson from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke Regarding the Set-up and Use of Camera System

	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Oakland County Board of Commissioners Resolution #10006 – Support of the Final Report of the Legislative Commission on Statutory Mandates, December 2009 (Report available on City of Troy Current City Council Agenda Web Page)

	M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting – November 19, 2009

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1  No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



